

ST. MARY'S UNIVERSITY

SCHOOL OF GRADUATE STUDIES

THE MEDIATING EFFECT OF CUSTOMER SATISFACTION ON THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN SERVICE QUALITY AND CUSTOMER LOYALTY IN THE CASE OF SELECTED CBE BRANCHES

BY

MARIAMAWIT SOLOMON

A THESIS SUBMITTED TO ST. MARY'S UNIVERSITY, SCHOOL OF GRADUATE STUDIES IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR

MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

CHAPTER ONE 1
INTRODUCTION TO THE STUDY 1
1.1 Background of the Study 1
1.2 Statement of the Problem
1.3. Basic Research Questions
1.4. Objectives of the Study 4
1.4.1. Specific Objective
1.5 Scope of the Study4
1.6 Significance of the study4
1.7 Definitions of operational terms
1.8 Organization of the Study
CHAPTER TWO
REVIEW OF RELATED LITERATURE
2.1. Concepts of service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty
2.1.1.1. Dimensions of service quality7
2.1.1.2. Characteristics of Service
2.1.1.3. Model of Service Quality Gaps
2.1.2. Customer Satisfaction10
2.1.3. Customer Loyalty11
2.2. Service quality and customer satisfaction12
2.2.1 Tangible and customer satisfaction13
2.2.2 Reliability and Customer Satisfaction13

Table of Contents

2.2.3 Responsiveness and Customer Satisfaction14	
2.2.4 Assurance and Customer Satisfaction14	
2.2.5 Empathy and Customer Satisfaction15	
2.3. Service Quality and Customer Loyalty15	
2.3.1 Tangibles and Customer Loyalty16	
2.3.2 Reliability and Customer Loyalty16	
2.3.3 Responsiveness and Customer Loyalty17	
2.3.4 Assurance and Customer Loyalty17	
2.3.5. Empathy and Customer Loyalty	
2.4. Customer satisfaction and customer loyalty	
2.5. Relationships between Service Quality, Customer satisfaction and Customer Loyalty19	
2.6. Theories of Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Customer Loyalty	
2.6.1 The SERVQUAL Model	
2.6.2 Performance Only Model (SERVPERF)	
2.6.3 The Disconfirmation Model	
2.7. Empirical literature Review21	
2.7.1. Service Quality in Banking Sector	
2.7.2. Customer satisfaction in banking sector	
2.7.3. Customer Loyalty in a Banking sector	
2.8. Relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in bankin sector	g
2.9. Conceptual Frame work of the study24	

CHAPTER THREE
RESEARCH METHODOLOGY27
3.1. Introduction
3.2. Research Design27
3.3. Research Approach
3.4. Data Type and Sources
3.5. Target Population and sample size
3.5.1. Target Population
3.5.2 Sample Size
3.5.3. Sampling Technique
3.6. Data collection method Instruments
3.6.1 Procedure of Data Collection
3.7. Methods of Data analysis
3.8. Methods of Data Analysis
3.8.1. Specification of the Model
3.9. Validity and Reliability Test
3.9.1. Validity
3.9.2. Pilot Test
3.9.3. Reliability
3.10. Ethical considerations

Abstract

The purpose of this study was to examine the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship of service quality and customer loyalty in the case of commercial bank of Tefera Degfe branch. Explanatory design was employed in this study. Total samples of 118 respondents were drawn out of 135 total populations for the study. SERVEQUAL model was adapted as the conceptual framework for analysis. Data were collected through structured questionnaire. Data were analyzed through descriptive statistics, narrative and regression analyses. The results indicated that customer satisfaction mediates the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty. All the five dimensions of service quality had significant, positive effect on the customer loyalty. It is observed that customers were most satisfied with tangibility dimension of service quality followed by assurance. The finding from the correlation result reveals that there is a positive and significant relationship between the service quality dimensions, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. Overall service quality dimensions regressed with dependent variable customer satisfaction and customer loyalty results revealed in the model summery $R^2 =$.330 and .314 respectively. It implies that 33 % of variation in customer satisfaction and 31.4 % of the variation in customer loyalty is explained by independent variable service quality dimensions. Finally, the researcher recommend to the bank that in our current environment services preference of customers and their demands keeps on changing at a rapid speed and the bank should operate proactively in meeting its customers' needs and preferences. So that bank managers develop and implement customer-oriented service strategies to identify customers' needs and expectations in order to serve them better.

Key words: service quality, customer satisfaction, customer loyalty

CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background of the Study

In Ethiopia, financial sector is dominated by banking industry; Banks play a significant role in the growth of sustainable economic efficiency by intermediating between to those who have excessive funds and to those who have viable project which requiring funds for investment. Banks also play key role in facilitating trade activities and payments by reducing transaction costs and increasing trust among traders (NCA, 2006). In Ethiopia Modern banking system was started in 1905. When the time, Emperor Minelik II and a representative of the British owned National Bank of Egypt was agreed to open bank in Ethiopia. Based on the agreement Bank of Abyssinia inaugurated in Feb.16, 1906 by the Emperor himself (Damena, 2011). At a time the services of the bank were not widely known by the public, due to that its customers were foreigners and only few Ethiopians who knew the uses of a bank were customers. After Italian invasion the bank was bought by the Ethiopian government and the State Bank of Ethiopia was established by a proclamation issued in august 1942. This bank was later divided in to two different banks forming the National Bank of Ethiopia and the Commercial Bank of Ethiopia (Gedey, B, 1990).

The operation of the bank was criticized after Emperor Hailesselassie came to the power for being inappropriateness and it stands only for its own profit, as a result the Emperor reformed the bank with Ethiopian Bank. And the shares of the bank were opened for the public for sale. And with that sale a new bank emerged as the Ethiopian Bank. The new enterprise named as Ethiopian Bank and it was fully owned by Ethiopian's and it was became the first National Bank in Africa. The public started to be aware the service of the bank and the people starts to use the banking service, the role of the Bank in the Ethiopian economy accelerate to grow. According to some experts the reason for acceptance of the public trust was the bank fully owned by Ethiopians (Terefe, 2013)

To empower the role of banks in an economy, service quality is an important driving force; without quality service, it may not be possible to bring efficiency in a financial sector development. In the contrary, poor service quality may result in substantial social losses on account of higher price, higher transaction cost, lower credit supply, lack of innovation (Zerhun, 2013). Studies shows that the services delivered are met or exceeded the expectation of its customer, they will be likely to

get satisfied. Satisfied customers will be retained and become loyal to the service firm. To provide quality service, information about the customer's perception of the service quality is very much important. So that the improvements in quality standards bring a positive outcome for the firms when service firms well understand the fact that continuously improve service quality and offerings increase the satisfaction level of customers, they can better allocate resources to attain quality standards in order to meet their client's expectations. Hence, in this highly competitive era, delivering quality service exceeded beyond its customer expectation is base to takeover competitive advantage than its competitors. Therefore, this research mainly focuses to investigate the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty and the moderate effect of customer satisfaction on service quality and customer loyalty relationship in case of commercial bank of Ethiopia selected branches in Addis Ababa.

1.2. Statement of Problem

The baking sector has been growing rapidly in Addis Ababa in the past decade. The growth of banks in number makes available banking service to the whole public, investors and tourists. The availability and accessibility does not guarantee service quality and competitiveness in the globalized business environment (Tsegaye, 2016). The financial services, particularly banks, compete in the marketplace with generally undifferentiated products; therefore service quality becomes a primary competitive weapon (Stafford, 1996). Increasingly, service quality has used as a strategic tool by the various market players to position themselves effectively in the market. And it can be defined as "Service quality is the customer's perception of service excellence which means quality is defined by the customer's impression of the service provided" (Parasuraman A. Z., 1985)(Berry, 1988).

In the banking context one of the main elements determining customer satisfaction is the customer's perception of service quality. Customer satisfaction is described as the result of a comparison of the customers' expectations and its subsequent perceived performance of service quality (Herington, 2009). According to this conceptualization, perceived service quality is one of the antecedents to overall customer satisfaction. Previous studies showed the evidence support this relationship between customer satisfaction and service quality (Yee, 2011).

Most importantly, the cost of retaining current customers by improving product and services is significantly lower than the cost of winning new customers. Because the importance of service

quality and customer satisfaction as a route to competitive advantage and corporate profitability in banking industry. Here the problem is services are intangible in nature their success and failure is not easily measured or quantified as compare to the manufacturing sector. Further in a competitive era, the customer services preference keep on changing at a rapid speed and their demands and customer shifting to other service providers is high especially when they are dissatisfied with service provided (Mensah.R, 2006). Once the customers switch the firm, the cost of return is very high and enhancing service quality is very much essential for the banks to retain the customers for longer period of time (Portela.M.C.A.S & Thanassoulis, 2005). So that, maintaining customer satisfaction by understanding their expectation and delivering exceeded quality service is a key factor to customer loyalty. There is plentiful researches have been done in the field of service quality in various service industries across the world. But in Ethiopia a few researches conducted in a service industry specially in banking sector most of these studies entitled to link service quality with customer satisfaction or with customer loyalty independently. However these three constructs service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty are closely interrelated but compressive study in its relationship is scarce. Therefore the researcher initiated to fill this research gap, in addition to that there is no research study conducted in commercial bank selected branches in Addis Ababa related to this topic. Hence, Finding out the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty and its effect is a valued issue in this study.

1.3. Basic Research Questions

This research will aimed to address the following research questions:

- > What is the relationship between service quality dimensions and customer satisfaction?
- > What is the relationship between service quality dimensions and customer loyalty?
- > Is there any relationship between customer satisfaction and customer loyalty?
- What is the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty?

1.4. Objective of the study

The general objective of the study will find out the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in the case of commercial bank selected branches in Addis Ababa.

1.4.1. Specific objectives

The specific objective of this study will examine:

- > The relationship between service quality dimensions and customer satisfaction.
- > The relationship between service quality dimensions and customer loyalty.
- > The relationship between customer satisfactions and customer loyalty.
- The mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty.

1.5. Scope of the Study

The study is limited in two scopes: Geographical and Subject scope. The geographic scope is that this study comprises commercial bank of Ethiopia selected branches in Addis Ababa. The subject scope: The study was focus on the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. Further it investigated the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the service quality and customer loyalty relationship.

1.6. Significance of the study

This research aimed to investigate the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in selected branches of commercial bank of Ethiopia. Due to the exist of intense competition in the banking sector; its output provides insight to bank managers, board of directors and employees to understand customer perception of service quality and its relationship with customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. It test validity of SERVQUAL model in a given research area banking sectors. And the study will likely to help customers to express their feelings and perceived position on the way banks are delivering services, with expectation to receive improved service quality. Finally, its findings may serve as a reference for future studies in banking industries.

1.7. Definitions of operational terms

Service quality- is the customer's perceived value of the service by comparing between perceived quality and service expectation (Miranda et al. 2017)

Customer satisfaction- refers to the degree to which customer expectations of a product or service are met or exceeded as against the perceived performance (Murali et al. (2016).

Customer loyalty- is a customer's intention or predisposition to purchase from the same seller or the same brand again and is an outcome of the conviction that the value received from the said seller/ brand is higher than the value available from other alternatives" (Thakur 2016),

1.8. Organization of the study

The study will have five chapters. Chapter One is introduction to the study. It contains background of the study, problem statement, research questions, and objective of the study, and scope of the study, significance of the study and organization of the paper. Chapter Two contains related literature review. Chapter Three will presents the methodology of the study. This includes research design, population, sampling method and size, sampling technique, source data, and data collection instruments, method of data collection, variable measurement, reliability test, data analysis and ethical consideration. Chapter Four will covers data analysis and interpretation; while Chapter Five contains the summary of findings, conclusions and recommendations of the study.

CHAPTER TWO

REVIEW OF RELATED LITERATURE

Introduction

In order to construct a research framework, relevant studies have been thoroughly reviewed and are presented to first elaborate the conceptual framework of all three constructs examined in the study. Attention is then focused on exploring the relationship among them from the perspective of service industries in general and banking industry in particular. Subsequently, the directional flows of the relationships are discerned through literature search and review. These steps then provides theoretical framework for this study and the research objectives to be formed.

2.1. Concepts of service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty

2.1.1. Service Quality

Quality in service is also interrelated to other behavioral outcomes of the customers. The study understands the various customer perceptions about the service quality factors as multidimensional construct. Services are a day to day activity that interacts between customers and service providers comprising commonly based on customer judgments about service supplier and customer interactions and provided service itself (Cronin J. &., 1992) Service quality is seen as the difference between customer expectation and perceptions of service with the view of building competitive advantage over its competitors. This shows that delivering quality service means conforming to customer expectations on a consistent basis and could be assessed by probing whether perceived service delivery meets, exceeds or fails to meet customer expectations (Cronin J. &., 1992).

The satisfaction level of customers is dependent on their perception of service quality and the trust in service provider (Ismail, 2006) and (Parasuraman A. B., 1988). By providing better quality services to customers, a firm revives the perception of customers about quality of services. Particularly in banking industry, a number of intangible activities provided as premium service quality plays a pivotal role for customers in evaluating the performance of a service provider and is the key to gain customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. A bank can gain competitive advantage and build long term relationship with its customers by providing premium quality services. Several evidences found in literature establish that there is a significant correlation between service quality and customer satisfaction (G.S Sureshshchndar chandrasekharan Rajendran, 2003); (Boulding.W, 1993) and (Bitner, 1990). According to (Sargeant, 2001), it is obvious that the perceptions of service quality and commitment are related to loyalty, but each of the aforementioned factors, may have a different impact on customer loyalty in a particular banking industry. There are two kinds of reasons that can determine relationship breakdown between the customer and the organization these are natural causes (customer demand extinction) and artificial causes (insufficient service quality) (Sargeant, 2001), It is obvious that in order to increase customer loyalty the organization must seek to eliminate both natural and artificial causeons.

SERVQUAL scale, developed by (Parasuraman A. B., 1988) is the most famous measure of service quality. It classifies and measures service quality in five dimensions. We have taken these five dimensions; tangibles, reliability, responsiveness, assurance and empathy. SERVQUAL scale has been the most widely used measure of service quality. In many private research studies SERVQUAL has been constructively deployed (Parasuraman A. Z., 1991). Moreover several published research studies have positively discussed the SERVQUAL framework (Crompton, 1989)(Webster, 1989)(Woodside, 1989)and (Jonson Lind L., 1988), and have assessed the validity and reliability of this measure(Babakus, 1992)(Brensinger, 1990) and (Finn David W., 1991), Furthermore following the criticism on SERVQUAL scale, proper refinements were made to it(Parasuraman A. Z., 1991)...

2.1.1.1. Dimensions of service quality

Tangibility

Those things which have a physical existence and can be seen and touched. In context of service quality, tangibles can be referred to as Information and Communications Technology (ICT) equipment, physical facilities and their appearance (ambience, lighting, air-conditioning, seating arrangement); and lastly but not least, the services providing personnel of the organization(Blery, 2009). These tangibles are deployed, in random integration, by any organization to render services to its customers who in turn assess the quality and usability of these tangibles.

Reliability

Reliability means the ability of a service provider to provide the committed services truthfully and consistently (Babakus, 1992). Customers want trustable services on which they can rely. It also deals with ability to reliably and correctly fulfill the commitments to consumers.

Responsiveness

Responsiveness refers the availability of the provider's to attend voluntarily to users providing a service in an attentive manner with precision and speed of response. It concerns the availability of employees of the institution to assist users and provide the service promptly;

Assurance

Assurance is developed by the level of knowledge and courtesy displayed by the employees in rendering the services and their ability to instill trust and confidence in customer (Blery, 2009). It refers to service staff's knowledge and manners, and their ability to have customers depended; and assured.

Empathy

Empathy means taking care of the customers by giving attention at individual level to them (Blery, 2009). It involves giving ears to their problems and effectively addressing their concerns and demands. Service quality analysis makes an impact on the development of the customer loyalty concept service quality can be regarded as one of the most frequently analyzed customer loyalty determinants. Tangible and intangible constituents of service quality were important in evaluating either customer view of an organization or customer trust in an organization (Doney, 1997) (Garbarino, 1999). It has been defined that service quality is very important for customer satisfaction, and by it service quality impacts customer loyalty (Cronin J. &., 1992)(Oliver R. , 1999)it can be stated, that the limitation of service quality studies is the inconsistency in determining the link between service quality and customer loyalty. Some studies have found that service quality determines customer satisfaction and affects customer loyalty through satisfaction (Cronin J. &., 1992) (Rust, 1994). Other studies, in contrast, have justified the influence of customer satisfaction on the quality of service (Bolton R. N., 1991).

2.1.1.2. Characteristics of Service

(Kotler P. B., 1999), stated that a service has four major characteristics that greatly affect the design of marketing programs for it. These characteristics are as following:

Intangibility

A service is intangible and cannot be seen, tasted, felt, heard or smelled before it is bought. For example, a person receiving a haircut cannot see the result before purchase.

Inseparability

Services are produced and consumed at the same time. For instance, as it is in car hiring. The person rendering the service becomes part of the service as how he does it affect the quality of the service.

Heterogeneity of Variability

Services are highly variable as they depend on who provides them and when and where they are provided. For examples, although branches of a particular bank may be selling and delivering the same service, the quality may not be uniform or homogenous from branch to branch

Perishability or Fluctuating Demand

Services are highly perishable since they cannot be stored. For example, hours when cashiers are idle at the bank cannot be used to expand service on a busy day when long queues are formed.

2.1.1.3. Model of Service Quality Gaps

There are seven major gaps in the service quality concept the model is an extension of (Parasuraman A. Z., 1985). According to the following authors (Systems, 1992)(Curry, 1999)(Luk, 2002)the three important gaps, which are more related with the external customers, are Gap1, Gap5 and Gap6; since they have a direct relationship with customers.

Gap1: Customers' expectations versus management perceptions: as a result of shortage in assessment of market demand, inadequate information communicating system or length of management hierarchy, delivery may quite different the expectation of customers.

Gap2: Management perceptions versus service specifications: as a result of inadequate commitment to service quality, inappropriate service quality standards or an absence of quality goal achievement.

Gap3: Service specifications versus service delivery: as a result of unforeseen problems which related to role ambiguity and conflict, poor employee skill and poor technology and lack of control a service provider may failure to meet service quality specifications

Gap4: Service delivery versus external communication: as a result of exaggerated premise of service provider there may be dissatisfaction with a service because of the extensively high expectations developed through the service provider's communications efforts delivery miss-match the premise.

Gap5: The discrepancy between customer expectations and their perceptions of the service delivered: as a result of the influences exerted from the customer side and the shortfalls (gaps) on the part of the service provider. In this case, the way in which customers perceived actual service delivery does not match with their initial expectations. Customer expectations are affected by the extent of personal desires and past service experiences.

Gap6: The discrepancy between customer expectations and employees' perceptions: as a result of understanding gap between customer expectations and employees of front-line service providers perception.

Gap7: The discrepancy between employee's perceptions and management perceptions: as a result of understanding gap between customer expectations and managers perceptions.

2.1.2. Customer Satisfaction

In customer service management satisfaction is considered as the result of a customer's perception of the value received in a transaction or relationship – where value equals perceived service quality relative to what is received against what is expected from the utilization of that good or service (Kotler P. a., 2009) relative to the value expected from transactions or relationships with competing vendors (Zeithaml, 1996).

Customer satisfaction refers to the level to which customers` are delight with the products and services provided by the firm. Delivering high quality service beyond their expectation is increasing the levels of customer satisfaction; through in it organizations have belt their competitive advantage over the rivalry because satisfied customers less are influenced by competitors most likely to be loyal and to make repeat orders and to use a wide range of services

offered by a business (Zineldin M., 2000)(Gerpott, 2001)noted customer satisfaction is measured by that a customer's estimated experience of the extent to which a provider's services fulfill his or her expectations.

(Ovenden, 1995), announced organizations to pay attention carefully to the way they treat their customers since some customers may not openly display their dissatisfaction with the kind of treatment meted them immediately. Complaint management is one important component in the concept of satisfaction (Nyer, 2000) investigated the relation between consumer complaints and consumer satisfaction and he found that encouraging consumers to complain to increase their satisfaction, and it was especially the cause for the most dissatisfied customers. Research has also found that the more intensive customer complains the greater the increases in satisfaction. (Johnston, 2001), argued that complaint management not only results in customer satisfaction, but also leads to overall operational improvement and financial performance.

2.1.3. Customer Loyalty

The concept of loyalty presented in the literature with two directions, behavior and attitude (Baumann, 2011). Behavior loyalty refers to customer behavior to purchasing frequently and while attitude loyalty refers to the emotional and psychological state of the customer to repurchase (Reichheld, 1993). It can be concluded that customer loyalty is a behavior that committed to the product or service and persuade to refer these products or service to others. (Oliver R., 1993), pp. 34 defines loyalty as a "deeply held customer commitment with a product or service that is reflected by customers purchase repetitions of the same brand while ignoring any other influences to leave that brand.

Overall, loyalty discussed in the literature is when a customer frequently purchases a service or product over time or when a customer has favorable attitude towards a service or product (Wong, 2003), (Baumann, 2011). In this study loyalty refers to the continuous belongingness to a particular bank by customer overtime (Ladhari, 2011). When customer evaluating the service delivery of a firm, they compares with their expectation prefer to purchase or consumption with actual service provided. If the service/product offered equals or is above their expectation the customer feels dissatisfied (Oliver R, 1980), According to (Reichheld, 1993)satisfied customers are more likely to persuade to refer the bank to others, thereby minimizing the banks expense of providing more services with of least complaints. Studies have noticed that the level of satisfaction that customers

experienced in respect of service or product with influence them to decide to retain as loyal customer to the bank e.g.(Levesque, 1996); (Amin, 2011)(Bearded, 1983), state that customer satisfaction is important as it guarantees purchase repetition and customer loyalty. When customers loyal to a bank, they will stay with the same bank and recommending the banks service to others. On the contrast, when customers dissatisfied with the banks service or products they will react negatively and shift to other bank (Amin, 2011).

Customer loyalty can be accomplished at times by offering a quality item with a firm certification or using alternative incentive for the customer. The long term goal is to get loyal customers. Geronikolas (2012) reports some considerations in the hotel business that are destined to push customers away include incompetent, rude or unfriendly staff, dirty premises, moderateness, and esteem for cash. Overall, loyalty standards are the most important in banks tangibles. They seem to be increasingly significant in creating both a loyal base of satisfied customers and driving dissatisfied customers away.

In general every bank company aims to earn profit, expands its business by offering more diversified and quality service over time and capturing a large market share progressively. Customer loyalty can significantly contribute to achieve this basic objective of the bank (Hayes, 2008). As it is an effective tool to generate adequate income from the customers (Chu, 2009). Furthermore, these loyal customers can serve as effective promoter in marketing mechanism when they refer their bank to more people. In this was this existing customer contribute towards increasing their respective bank's customer base and market share. The financial base of any bank is largely dependent on this phenomenon.

2.2. Service quality and customer satisfaction

Service quality is one of the most important aspects in banking industry of the premium customer experience. Customer satisfaction is meeting properly customer demands and expectations and providing quality services stated as market standards (Gitomer, 1998),Most organizations attempt to improve service quality on a regular basis to ensure high level customer satisfaction and to enhance customer retention and loyalty. However, satisfaction does not guarantee repurchase, customer retention and loyalty. Thus, many organizational researchers provide that service quality has been strong predictors of customer retention and customer satisfaction. Finally conclude that service is a driving force of customer satisfaction and the result leads to customer loyalty(Cronin

J. B., 2000) So that the service quality is a key factor for customer satisfaction and it is an important tool particularly for banks to maximize their income and market share over its competitors (Muyeed, 2012).

2.2.1 Tangible and customer satisfaction

Tangible in banking industry context refers physical facilities and their appearance these can be seen and touched. Thus may attract the attention of customers impressively. Thus the appearance of banking environment contributes its positive impact on the degree of customer satisfaction. The relationship between quality and customer satisfaction in banking sector of Sweden is studied by (Zineldin M. , 2005). He ensures that tangible and non-tangible attributes of premium quality in products and services provided by bank are may create strong and long term relationship with the customers. This service quality dimension comprises of bank creating foremost impressions and all organizations desire that their customers get an exceptional and positive foremost impression by focusing on this particular dimension will help them to gain maximum benefit (Swar, 2012).

2.2.2 Reliability and Customer Satisfaction

The relationship between dimensions of service quality and customer satisfaction was examined by (Ibànez, 2006). They noticed that a significant relationship between reliability of services and the satisfaction level of customers. There are plenty of literatures revealed that an increased positive relationship between service quality dimensions, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. Reliability refers the ability of a service provider to provide the committed services truthfully and consistently (Blery, 2009). Customers also want trustable services on which they rely. So that providing a reliable service has yielded many prospective competitive advantages including augmenting of productivity and enhanced revenue creation from new services (Muyeed, 2012).

2.2.3 Responsiveness and Customer Satisfaction

Responsiveness defined as the willingness or readiness of employees to provide service. It involves timeliness of services (Parasuraman A. Z., 1985). It is also involves understanding needs and wants of the customers, convenient operating hours, individual attention given by the staff, attention to problems and Customer satisfaction is a key factor in formation of customer's desires for future purchase (Mittal, 2001). Although satisfaction has been defined as the difference between

expectation and performance, but there are differences between quality and satisfaction. For example, (Parasuraman A. Z., 1991) say that satisfaction is a decision made after experience while quality is not the same. On the other hand, in satisfaction literature, expectations for goods is "would", while in service quality literature, expectations for goods is "should". Keeping your customers happy is the key to ensuring that your current clients don't become former clients. Failing to meet deadlines or ignoring customer inquiries can increase client dissatisfaction. When customer responsiveness is a priority, you'll find that opportunities to serve your clients increase, while problems and service issues decrease. Although good customer service is part of customer responsiveness, customer responsiveness takes customer service a step further. (Dawson, 2002), explain in a "Business Strategy Review" article that customer responsiveness is accurately and insightfully giving customers what they need, want or don't yet know they want and doing so more quickly than anyone else. Findings revealed that the Human Related Factors of perceived service quality have a greater impact on customer satisfaction (H.M.G.Y.J.Hennayake, 2017).

2.2.4 Assurance and Customer Satisfaction

In addition to tangibles, reliability and responsiveness; assurance has been identified as a significant dimension of service quality by (Parasuraman A. B., 1988). Assurance refers the level of knowledge and courtesy showed by the employees to instill trust and confidence in customers in rendering the services (Blery, 2009). It is obvious that if the employee of bank shows their capability and trustworthy behavior, the level of customers' satisfaction can be increasing dramatically. It may contribute positive impact on repurchase intension of customers (Ndubisi N. 0., 2006) and (Ndubisi N., 2005).

2.2.5 Empathy and Customer Satisfaction

Empathy refers taking care of the customers by giving attention at individual level to them (Blery, 2009). It involves giving ears to their problems and effectively addressing their concerns and demands. These study found that a positive and significant relationship between empathy and customer satisfaction (Iglesias, 2004). It was approved in another research study, if there is gap to pay attention to the problems individuals which encountered in the service delivery, customers

may remain unsatisfied. (Al-Marri, 2007), suggested that customer satisfaction is significantly impacted by empathy. It is an important predictor in improving customers' intention in the longrun serves as the financial performance of the organization. (Wieseke, 2012), empirically examined the role of empathy in service quality and its impact on customer satisfaction and he was found that customers handled emphatically are more frequent visitors and prone forgive any mistakes that may occur. Empathy creates an emotional relationship with customer, providing customer a touch of importance for business. This leads to retention and creation of new customers' pool and make familiar. (Juneja, 2011), has also studied the correlation between service quality dimensions and customer satisfaction in Bangladesh banking industry. He was found that empathy is a critical element to won customer loyalty. Empathy can play an important role in improving of service quality, customer loyalty and finally satisfaction (Karatepe, 2011), explored the service environment impact with empathy and reliability on loyalty. Empathy works as a moderator between quality and customer satisfaction. Empathy can change the behavior of customer ultimately.

2.3. Service Quality and Customer Loyalty

There are so many researchers had been found that a strong relationship between service quality and customer loyalty (Anderson, 2000)(Bloemer J. M., 1999).(Heskett, 1997), Evidences revealed that there are strong and direct relationship between customer loyalty and service quality. While (Bloemer J. M., 1999), have stated that service quality results in customer loyalty it may also act as a vital promoter whereas if level of customers' is also tends to be relatively high, However in a today's highly volatile and dynamic business environment especially in the services sector achieving higher levels of customer satisfaction and customer loyalty, may be a tough task for many organizations. Also many researchers found that service quality dimensions have strong positive impact on customer loyalty (Ehigie, 2006)(Wong, 2003)and (Bitner, 1990).

Distinctive studies have investigated the relationship between service quality and customer faithfulness. For example, in focusing on repurchase points as a measure of faithfulness, Cronin and Taylor, (1994) affirmed that service quality does not have a basic (positive) effect on repurchase objectives (instead of the immense beneficial outcome of satisfaction on repurchase objective). In any case, Boulding, et al, (1993), focusing on the segments of repurchasing and moreover the availability to recommend as measures of customer dedication, found positive

associations between service quality and repurchase desires and capacity to propose to others (Akbar and And have proved willingness to recommend and repurchase intention as dimensions of the customer loyalty. Parvez, 2009).

on an alternate note, a couple of customers may stay steadfast in light of high exchanging costs or the nonattendance of honest to goodness substitutes, while others will continue being dedicated since they are content with the services given (Lam and Burton, 2006). Service suppliers must abstain from being smug since loyal customers may not generally be the fulfilled ones and also not every fulfilled customer may dependably be loyal. Research has demonstrated that service quality decidedly influences customer dedication (Wong, 2005). This is in light of the fact that service quality has been found to identify with behavioral outcome particularly as informal, protestation, proposal and exchanging (Al-Rousan, Ramzi and Mohamed, 2010).

2.3.1 Tangibles and Customer Loyalty

The appearance of banking environment contributes its positive impact on the degree of customer satisfaction. The relationship between service quality and customer satisfaction in banking sector of Sweden is studied by (Zineldin M., 2005), He ensured that tangible and non-tangible attributes of premium quality in products and services provided by bank are may create a strong and long-term relationship with their customers. (Jabnoun, 2003), realized that tangibles established by banks with better ambience enhance customer loyalty in a better way.

2.3.2 Reliability and Customer Loyalty

Stated as (G.S Sureshchandar, 2003)a research study conducted in Malaysian banking sector to investigate the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty, the ability and knowledge developed by the employee to provide trustful and consistence service is base for customer loyalty. And (Brown, 1993), found that reliability is the strongest dimension of service quality and it has close relationship with customer loyalty.

2.3.3 Responsiveness and Customer Loyalty

Responsiveness is defined as "the willingness to help customers and provide prompt service" (Parasuraman A. B., 1988). Furthermore, (Johneston, 1997) defines responsiveness such as speed and timeliness of service delivery. This consists of processing speed and service capabilities to

respond promptly to customer service requests, and wait a short and queuing time. More specifically, responsiveness is defined as the willingness or readiness of employees to provide services. Customer loyalty is also a deep and inner commitment which leads to repurchase or reuse of a specific product or service. It occurs when customers strongly feel that the desired organization can best meet their needs and responds their request promptly, so that competing organizations are excluded from customers' considerations, and customers only purchase from their desired organization (Shoemaker, 1999).

Loyalty of an individual to a bank consists of a targeted behavioral reaction that is created in that individual as a result of psychological factors. It also leads to selecting a bank from among different banks. Loyalty of an individual to a bank is composed of two parts: a. Behavioral, such as purchases and revisits in a targeted manner due to the fact that this behavior is not accidental. b. Psychological, which includes the assessment of the decision-making process in the mind of the individual. Finally, in this research, responsiveness is the readiness of banking service providers at a specific Arba Minch town banking sector to provide punctual services as perceived by a specific Arba Minch town banking customers. This is measured using 4 items of the responsiveness dimension of the 22-item SERVQUAL

2.3.4 Assurance and Customer Loyalty

Most customer loyalty experts would agree that loyalty is best defined as a state of mind, a set of attitudes, beliefs, desires etc. Loyalty is developed by approaches which reinforce and develop a positive state of mind and the associated behaviors (Foss, 2001). Customers want assurance from any service providing firms to remain loyal. (Bitner, 1990), was noticed that assurance much strongly impact customer loyalty than any other dimesion of service quality. Assurance in addition to customer loyalty it improves level of customers' satisfaction and financial performance banks.

2.3.5. Empathy and Customer Loyalty

In this highly dynamic and intense competitive business environment without individual care and attention to customer may not be expected loyal customer in services industry, particularly in banking sector (Jabnoun, 2003). The only means of way to won loyal customer the services delivery staff should be strongly committed to providing premium quality services as well as

should be able to effectively handle conflicts in a timely manner(Malhotra, 2005); and (Ndubisi N., 2005).

2.4. Customer satisfaction and customer loyalty

In the literature, the impact of satisfaction on loyalty largely indicates that the former is a key determinant of the latter (Dick, 1994). Researches have widely investigated the relationship between customer satisfactions and customer loyalty focused on the impact of customer satisfaction, as it is a most significant predictor of customer loyalty. Furthermore, the two concepts often some time made confusion by both professionals and academics (O'Malley, 1998), Not everyone agrees, though. (Reichhold, 1994), for instance revealed that customers satisfied or highly satisfied claiming service provided may still cease to be loyal.

On the contrary, loyal customers are not necessarily the satisfied ones although satisfied customers do tend to be loyal (Fornell, 1992)(Oliver R., 1999). Thus, a clear difference is made between the two concepts. From a more conceptual perspective, (Oliver R., 1999), after a review of the relationship between Springer Received and reviewed by former editor, concludes that the one considers satisfaction and loyalty to be two distinct states in a best approximation, while it can concede that the first will likely lead to the second. Although the relationship between satisfaction and loyalty had been the focus of ample research deal, it continues to discuss studies many unanswered questions about its exact nature and strength (Mittal, 2001).

Likewise, (Patterson, 1997), declared that a contended customer exhibits greater retention and expressed significantly positive impact of customer satisfaction on customer loyalty. Similarly, (Zafar, 2012) found that positive relationship between customer satisfaction and customer loyalty

2.5. Relationships between Service Quality, Customer satisfaction and Customer Loyalty

Many researchers had been argued for long time in the issue of relationship between customer satisfaction and service quality (Jacobucci, 2001). Some researchers argued that service quality is the antecedent of customer satisfaction, the others while argued that the opposite relationship between in these two constructs (Parasuraman, Zeithaml., & Berry, 1994); (Oh, 1999). Most studies show that positive relationship among the two constructs (Suki, 2013). (Parasuraman A. B., 1988), briefly shows in his study the relationship between service quality and customer satisfaction as "service quality is a global judgment, or attitude, relating to the superiority of the

service, whereas satisfaction is related to a specific transaction" (p. 16). Previous studies showed that service quality can be expressed as a form of attitude that is relative but not equivalent to satisfaction, which results from the comparison of expectations with actual performance (Parasuraman A. B., 1988); (Bolton R. N., 1991); (Cronin J. &., 1992); (Lee, 2010a). These constructs, in business and marketing literatures, have been seen as a distinct, but intimately close related constructs researchers argued that service quality has impact on customer satisfaction and generates customer loyalty (Jacobucci, 2001), (Chang, 2009), when constructs a conceptual model that correlates Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Customer Loyalty in a single frame.

2.6. Theories of Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Customer Loyalty

Different researchers have developed alternative measures of service quality for specific service settings. Cronin and Taylor (1992) developed SERVPERF model to measure service quality in the banking industry.

2.6.1 The SERVQUAL Model

Service quality measurements have benefited extraordinarily from studies by Parasuraman, Zeithaml and Berry (1988) who built up the model and estimation approach which they named SERVQUAL, consisting of 22-items. SERVQUAL was developed on the basis of service levels of a group of firms or service providers, classified in one category (general) and the customers' assessment of the actual 15 performance of a selected firm in this category. The SERVQUAL model will be the hypothetical premise whereupon this contextual analysis will be established.

2.6.2 Performance Only Model (SERVPERF)

SERVPERF was made by Cronin and Taylor (1992) in their trial work which incorporated the adjustment of SERVQUAL concerning conceptualization and estimation of service quality. They developed an execution based measure of service quality called "SERVPERF" demonstrating that service quality is a sort of customer demeanor. It measures service quality on the basis of execution. Cronin and Taylor (1992) contended that execution is the measure that best clarifies customers' view of service quality, so perception ought not to be incorporated into the service quality estimation instrument. SERVPERF looks at the attributes of the 5 dimensions, worded the same as SERVQUAL however does not rehash the arrangement of explanations as expected items. SERVPERF hence contains a 22 items (Likert-type) with five measurements of dependability,

responsiveness, affirmation, sympathy and physical assets. 22 statements are then inferred to gauge the view of customers towards the quality of services of the association being surveyed. This examination adjusted the SERVPERF apparatus to quantify service quality among hotels in Nairobi Kenya.

2.6.3 The Disconfirmation Model

The Disconfirmation Model depends on the examination of customers and their perceived performance ratings. Individuals' expectations are met when an item or service performs according to his or her desires. It is adversely affirmed when an item performs more ineffectively than anticipated. The disconfirmation is certain when an16 item performs superior to expected (Churchill and Suprenant 1982). The four constructs that depict the customary disconfirmation worldview are desires, execution, disconfirmation and satisfaction. "Satisfaction is considered as a result of the experience that may be, buy and use, in connection to the purchasers' correlation of expected rewards and aggregate expenses of the buy in connection is considered as a result of satisfactions' inside a few components of an item. "Satisfaction is considered as a result of the experience that seems to be, buy and use, in connection to the purchasers' correlation of expected rewards and aggregate expenses of the buy in connection is considered as a result of the experience that seems or another like demeanor as it can be assessed as the whole of satisfactions' inside a few components of an item. "Satisfaction is considered as a result of the experience that seems to be, buy and use, in connection to the purchasers' correlation of expected rewards and aggregate expenses of the buyer in connection is considered as a result of the experience that seems to be, buy and use, in connection to the purchasers' correlation of expected rewards and aggregate expenses of the buyer in connection to the foreseen outcomes

The theories can be used to understand the relationship between the customers' desires and the genuine encounter. It would help the administration to comprehend the crevices in the item. In instances where marketers over promise, this can help the team to evaluate and manager customer expectations; promise less and offer more At last, the customer is content with the experience.

2.7. Empirical literature Review

2.7.1. Service Quality in Banking Sector

Service quality is important in the banking sector. Some of the reviewed literatures are presented below: (Bahia, 2000) conducted a research to develop a valid measurement of perceived service quality in the Retail Banking sector in Canada. They argued that the SERVQUAL approach has not except from critics; therefore, they developed a new measurement for perceived service quality in Retail Banking. They proposed a scale that was called Bank Service Quality (BSQ). It comprises

31 items classified across six dimensions as: effectiveness and assurance, access, price, tangibles, range of services offered and accuracy and reliability.

(Angur, 1999), examined the applicability of alternative service quality measure in the Retail Banking industry in India. They conducted their research on the consumers of two major banks in India. They use SERVQUAL model to measure the overall service quality. They found that all the dimensions are not equally important in explaining variance in overall service quality. The result indicated that responsiveness and reliability seem to be the most important dimensions followed by the empathy and tangible dimensions; whereas, assurance appears to be the least important dimension. Finally, they concluded that SERVQUAL is the best measure of service quality in banking industry.

The applicability of the SERVQUAL measure is well established in the retail banking industry. As mentioned earlier, (Angur, 1999) stated that SERVQUAL is the best measure of service quality in the retail banking industry in the developing country. Most of the researchers use the SERVQUAL measure or the modified SERVQUAL measure in the retail banking industry. From the above discussion it can be concluded that SERVQUAL is still suitable as an assessment tool to measure the service quality perceptions in the retail banking industry, whether it is based on difference score, gap score or performance only.

2.7.2. Customer satisfaction in banking sector

Literature establishes that customer satisfaction is a key to long-term business success (Zeithaml, 1996). To protect/gain market shares, organizations need to outperform competitors by offering high quality product or service to ensure satisfaction of customers(Tsoukatos, 2006). Banks need to understand customers" service requirements and how it impact on service delivery and customers" attitudes (Gerrard P, 2001), for a small increase of customer satisfaction can to customer loyalty and retention (Bowen and Chen, 2001). With better understanding of customers' perceptions, companies can determine the actions required to meet the customers' needs. They can identify their own strengths and weaknesses, where they stand in comparison to their competitors, chart out paths for future progress and improvement (Magesh, 2010).

In the banking industry, a key element of customer satisfaction is the nature of the relationship between the customer and the provider of the products and services. Thus, both product and service quality are commonly noted as a critical prerequisite for satisfying and retaining valued customers (Muslim A. and Isa, 2005). It is indeed true that delivery of high-service quality to customers offers firms an opportunity to differentiate themselves in competitive markets (Karatape, 2005).

2.7.3. Customer Loyalty in a Banking sector

The strategic objective which is the basis of the relationship marketing approach consists of achieving customer loyalty. A comprehensive definition of bank loyalty views the construct as " the biased (i.e. nonrandom) behavioral response (i.e. revisit), expressed over time, by some decision-making unit with respect to one bank out of a set of banks, which is a function of psychological (decision-making and evaluative) process resulting in brand commitment" (Bloemer J. R., 1998). An important statement which has to be remarked is the distinction between customer loyalty and customer retention.

According to Dick and Basu, loyalty is a complex construction, which comprises both psychological and behavioral components; different loyalty types are supposed to form a combination of repeated purchasing and relative attitude towards business firms (Dick, 1994). Therefore, customer loyalty can be defined both in terms of customer behavior, which will be synonymous with customer retention, and in terms of customer attitudes. In the first case, retention or behavioral loyalty is evaluated with the help of different quantitative indices like: the number of purchases made by the customer from the product portfolio of a company, the frequency of acquisition, the percentage from the total expenditures made by a customer for a certain product or service, with regard to a certain organization, the cross-buying potential of the customer. This type of loyalty or customer retention may be called spurious loyalty, if the repeated customer behavior happens without a strong attitude or a clear preference of the customer toward the current bank. In cases of spurious loyalty, customers continue to patronize a certain bank due to familiarity or habit, inertia, passivity, deals, low income or lack of others alternatives, but do not have a corresponding positive relative attitude.

In terms of attitudes, customer loyalty incorporates consumer preferences and their affective disposition toward the bank, which combined with repeat purchasing, describes the ideal situation of true loyalty. Thus, the value of psychological variables cannot be underestimated, because behavior reflects a current situation or, even more probably, a series of events from the past, whereas attitudes offer details regarding the customers' future behavior. Due to the reasons

mentioned above, simply repetitive customer behavior is not enough for them to be considered loyal towards the respective banks; repeated acquisitions or visits need to be doubled by a favorable attitude towards the company (Constantinescu, 2007).

2.8. Relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in banking sector

There was a numerous researchers attempt to find out the interrelationships between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in the banking sector. Researchers argue that service quality and customer satisfaction are the predictors of customer loyalty (Tariq, 2009); (Ehigie, 2006). (Veloutsou, 2004), found the positive relationship among service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in the banking sector in Greece.

Caruana, (2000), developed a meditational model that links the service quality to the service loyalty through customer satisfaction. The constructed model is supported by (Santouridis, 2010), (Cheng, 2008), (Bei, 2006), (Lewis, 2006), (Butcher, 2001). (Caruana, 2000), assured that service quality, customer satisfaction and service loyalty are closely related to each other.

(Tsegaye, 2016), conducted their research to explore the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in Ethiopian banking industry. The result confirmed that service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty were found to be significantly correlated. Based on the above mentioned literatures it can be concluded that there is a positive relationship between the studies constructs in the banking sector.

(Kheng, 2010), conduct their research in Penang, Malaysia among bank customers to evaluate the impact of service quality on customer loyalty byemploying the SERVQUAL model developed by (Parasuraman A. B., 1988) with five dimensions. The findings show that service quality dimensions such as reliability, empathy, and assurance are significantly impact customer loyalty and improvement on these dimensions can enhance customer loyalty and retention. Customer satisfaction was used as an intermediate variable and the result proves customer satisfaction mediates in the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty.

In Ethiopia, some studies were conducted in area of bank service quality (Adem, 2015), (Ibrahim, 2015), (Shanka M. S., 2012) but no study has been conducted in this specific research area related to this topic and this has become the research gap for the study.

2.9. Conceptual Frame work of the study

Based on these theoretical underpinnings, the conceptual model guiding the study is depicted in Figure 2.1 The framework shows that the present study is examining the relationship of tangibility, reliability, responsiveness, assurance, empathy with customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. There are few studies has been conducted in relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in the Ethiopia Banking Sector. Literatures have laid down the foundation for developing the conceptual framework. After narrowing down the scope of literature, variables of service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty were identified. In every organization, the performance of service quality is being evaluated mainly by the principal tool called "SERVQUAL" proposed and designed by (Parasuraman A. Z., 1985).



Figure 2.1. Conceptual framework of the study

Source: adopted from previous researchers and modified

Based on the above conceptual framework, the following research hypothesis has been formulated.

H1. There is a positive and significant association between service quality and customer satisfaction

H2. There is a positive and significance association between customer satisfaction and service loyalty.

H3. There is a positive and significance association between service quality and service loyalty

H4. There is a positive and significance relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and service loyalty.

CHAPTER THREE

RESEARCH METHODOLOGY

3.1 Introduction

This chapter will presents the methodology parts of the study in detail. Methodology is the systematic, theoretical analysis of the methods applied to a field of study. It comprises the theoretical analysis of the body of methods and principles associated with a branch of knowledge. This includes research design, population, sampling method and sample size, sampling technique, source data, and data collection instruments, method of data collection, variable measurement, reliability test, data analysis, pilot test and ethical consideration.

3.2 Research Design

Research design is basically master plan of a research that point out all of the major parts of the research focuses and decide on how the study is to be conducted(Salkind, 2002)). A research design focuses on the end-product and all the steps in the process to achieve that outcome. Thus, a research design is viewed as the functional plan in which certain research methods and procedures are linked together to acquire a reliable and valid body of data for empirically grounded analyses, conclusions and theory formulation. The research design thus provides the researcher with a clear research framework; it guides the methods, decisions and sets the basis for interpretation (Babbie, 2008).

In this sense, this study is a cross-sectional research design, which allowed the researcher to integrate service quality literatures, a pilot study and the actual survey as the main procedure to gather accurate and less bias data. And according to the time horizon; data will be collected from cross section of customers who are banking in selected branches of commercial bank of Ethiopia at one point in time (Creswell, 1998)(Sekaran, 2000). Survey research is used to quantitatively describe specific aspects of a given population. These aspects often involve examining the relationships among variables. This method is obtaining information based on questioning respondents as defined by (Das M., 2009). In this case, respondents will be asked various questions on service quality towards satisfaction and loyalty to their respective banks. According to (Malhotra, 2005) explanatory research is used it defined as a research used to investigate the relationship between variables. This will used to explore the relationship between the independent

variables, service quality dimensions and the dependent variable customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. In addition it tests the moderate effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty.

3.3. Research Approach

There are two research approaches that provide in the research method such as Quantitative and Qualitative, where one of them is not better than the others, all of this depends on how the researcher want to do a research of study(Ghauri and Kjell, 2005). To achieve the aforementioned objectives, the study adopts a mixed research approach, where it can be use of a questionnaire provided predominantly descriptive and quantified data. Quantitative method is study involving analysis of data and information that are descriptive in nature and qualified (Sekaran, 2003). Qualitative research will be used to discuss theories and concepts related with the studying variables that service quality, customer satisfaction and service loyalty.

A quantitative approach is one in which the investigator primarily uses post positive claims for developing knowledge, i.e., cause and effect relationship between known variables of interest or it employs strategies of inquiry such as experiments and surveys, and collect data on predetermined instruments that yield statistics data (Creswell, 2003).

3.4. Data Type and Sources

The necessary data for this study is collected from both primary and secondary data sources. According to Kothari (2004), primary data are fresh data that are gathered for the first time and thus happened to be original in character. Louis, et al (2007), describes primary data are those that are original to the problem under study. The study mainly depends up on primary source data. Primary data were collected from customers of selected branches of commercial bank of Ethiopia, while they are being banking or getting services.

The study used mixed approach such as, both qualitative and quantitative data. The qualitative data includes those data that are primarily collected through interview whereas; quantitative data includes objective items through the questionnaire. Regarding the data source, the study was used primary source. The primary source has been collected through closed-ended questionnaire to the customers of the company.

3.5. Target Population and sample size

3.5.1. Target Population

Lavrakas (2008) defines a population as any finite or infinite collection of individual elements. To describe a population as the entire collection of things in which we are interested. According to Zikmund, (2010) and Khotari (2004), a population refers to all items in any field of inquiry and is also known as the 'universe'. Poilt and Beck (2003) refer to population as the aggregate or totality of those confirming to a set of specifications. A sample is found to be the most appropriate for determining the sample unit and the sample size in the study. The target population of this study was infinite. As a result, the researcher used random sampling technique to get the sample.

3.5.2 Sample Size

Sample size is a subset or part of the population being studied (Nwana, 2005). Purposive and simple random sampling methods was used to select from all senior staff, junior staff and management personnel so that all personnel had an equal opportunity of being selected. The researcher drawn conclusions on the basis of a sample and, therefore, sample size determination is an important element in any research, although it is a difficult one. Exact tests to check whether sample size is adequate for the analysis required can be carried out by using statistical methods such as significance tests. To determine the sample size for the study, the researcher used the following a simplified formula to calculate sample sizes. According to Cochran,1970, with 95% confidence level and 0.05 sampling error are assumed for the equation.

$$n= \frac{p (1-p) z^{2}}{e^{2}}$$
$$= (0.1) (1-0.1)2.58^{2}$$
$$0.05^{2}$$
$$= 240$$

Where n is the sample size, p is the population proportion, e is acceptable error and z is z value at reliability level or significance level. The level of precision or sampling error to this study was assumed to be $\pm 5\%$

3.5.3. Sampling Technique

Sampling technique is technique used to select sample from population by reducing the number of respondents in manageable size. Sampling techniques broadly classified in to two namely sampling technique is technique used to select sample from population by reducing the number of respondents in manageable size. Sampling techniques broadly classified in to two namely probability and non-probability sampling techniques. Probability sampling technique was selected for the study. This technique enables the researcher to make decision about what elements to be included in the sample and it gives good estimation about the characteristics of the population (Malhotra, 2005). Further, using random sampling technique as a part of Probability Sampling, as per the, (Malhotra, 2005), random sampling method attempts to obtain a sample of convenient elements and fast, inexpensive, and easy to collect data and the subjects are readily available. Respondents were selected based on the convenience of the researcher as they happen to be at the right place at the right time

3.6. Data collection method Instruments

Data for this study was collected through primary source. The main tool that used for the collection of the data will be through the use of questionnaire. The questionnaire is divided into four sections which includes; the demographic characteristics section, the service quality, customer satisfaction and service quality section. Five – point Likert scale used for the questionnaire regarding the logistic inbound, logistic outbound and organizational performance. The Likert scale are coded with; 1= Strongly Disagree (SD), 2= Disagree (D), 3= Neutral/undecided (U), 4= Agree (A) and 5=strongly agreed (SA). The content validity will be used to test the accuracy of the methodology used to ensure that the tests accurately calculate the principles that should be checked (Sekaran, 2006).Primary sources was used to collect enough information in the study area and primary data are collected from the above mentioned samples through questionnaire and interview. In or-der to collect the intended amount of data, questionnaire was used. The questionnaire contains open ended questions in order to give the chance for respondents to explain issues in detail.

3.6.1 Procedure of Data Collection

As per the data collection tools and techniques, questionnaire were prepared having open ended and close ended questions. The questions were pre-pared based on the research questions. Then it was distributed and collected.

3.7. Methods of Data analysis

Once the data is collected from the field, it was checked for completeness, coded and entered. The entered data was leaned for any errors before the final analysis began. This was also help in testing the validity of measures used in the study. The demographic characteristics data of the respondent was analyzed using descriptive statistics especially the frequency and percentages. In order to determine the extent to which firms in the cement industry practice outbound logistics, an analysis of questions relating to this section carried out using their mean scores and standard deviations.

Correlation and regression analyses were run with customer loyalty the independent variable and organizational performance as the dependent variable. The regression was performed in order to fulfill objective that aims to evaluating the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. The results interpreted based on their coefficients, the level of significance of the coefficient of the studying variables, the R-squared, adjusted R - squared, significance of F statistic. The whole analysis will be aided by the use of Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS).

The collected data could be changed and interpreted into meaningful information. Therefore, the data would be analyzed, processed, and interpreted according to the nature of the data. Statistical package for Social Science (SPSS) software employed to analyze and present the data through the statistical tools used for this study, namely descriptive analysis, correlation and multiple relation analysis.

3.8. Methods of Data Analysis

Both descriptive and inferential statistics used to analyze and interpret the findings. Demographic variables of the respondents and mean scores of the service quality dimensions were interpreted using descriptive statistics (mean, standard deviations and median) whereas inferential statistics used to find out the relationship between service quality dimensions, customer satisfaction and

customer loyalty by using correlation analysis via SPSS Version 20. The study used Pearson correlation coefficient to summarize the degree and direction of relationship and preposition that service quality has significant relationship with customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. The regression coefficients will be used to test the magnitude of the relationship between dependent and independent variables and it applied f and t-significance from ANOVA to establish the significances of such relationship.

3.8.1. Specification of the Model

In order to run further analyses towards the variables as hypothesized, the relationships between the independent and dependent variables can be specified as follows:

Stage 1: On accounts of the theoretical relevance, the study formulates the following regression equation (relationships) to identify the determinants of customer satisfaction using three predetermined explanatory variables:

 $Y = \alpha + \beta x 1 + \beta x 2 + \beta x 3 + \beta x 4 + \beta x 5$

$CS = \alpha + \beta Tangibility + \beta Reliability + \beta Responsiveness + \beta Assurance + \beta Empathy$

Stage 2: To address the determinants of service loyalty, the following regression model was formulated:

$CL = \alpha + \beta Tangibility + \beta Reliability + \beta Responsiveness + \beta Assurance + \beta Empathy$

Stage 3: To examine the impact of customer satisfaction on service loyalty, the following simple linear regression was formulated:

$CL = \alpha + \beta Cs$

Stage 4: To investigate whether customer satisfaction mediates service quality, towards service loyalty, the independent variables will be controlled and customer satisfaction will be considered as independent variable (mediator) to service loyalty. According to (Baron, 1986), in order to establish mediation, the following conditions must hold: First, the independent variable must affect the mediator; secondly, the independent variable must have an effect on the dependent variable; and thirdly, the mediator must affect the dependent variable. If these conditions all hold in the predicted direction, then the independent variable must have no effect on dependent variable when
the mediator is held constant (full mediation) or should become comparatively less significant.(partial mediation).

3.9. Validity and Reliability Test

3.9.1. Validity

Validity refers to the extent to which the concept one wishes to measure is actually being measured by a particular scale or index. According to Kothari (2004), validity aims establishing the results which are linked with the condition. It is concerned with the extent that the scale accurately represents the construct of interest. In order to assure the validity of the measurement instrument of the study was conducted based on the literally accepted associated with conceptual framework that clearly indicate the theoretical construct and associated with the measurements valid to evaluate the relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and service loyalty. So that pre-questionnaire was distributed to check the validity of questions to further data collection process.

3.9.2. Pilot Test

A pilot test was carried out prior to the data collection stage. Das M. (2009) refers pilot study as a testing of questionnaire on a small sample of respondent to identify and eliminate potential problem. The appropriateness of questionnaire will be tested including question content, wording, sequence, form and layout. The pilot study carried out on 30 respondents and with the use of Cronbach Alpha and confidence interval test, reliability of the questionnaire was checked.

3.9.3. Reliability

In order to determine the reliability of the instrument, a pre-study study carried out from two other companies other than the cement industry so as to confirm the consistency of the instrument used in the study. Furthermore, adding to validating the tools by professionals, the data was encoded with the Statistical Package for Social Sciences for reliability procedures. The Cronbach's alpha used for the test. The reliability coefficient obtained from the data will be used to determine the reliability of the instrument. However, for the data to be reliable and the statistically consistent, it is expected that the coefficient of the tool should not be less than 0.75 correlation coefficient.

Reliability test carried out to assess the consistency of each item in measuring that variable or the same underlying construct, whenever, two or more items are assigned to measure the same variable. According to George and Mallery (2003, as cited in Joseph & Rosemary, 2003) Cronbach's alpha is a coefficient of reliability. It is commonly used as a measure of the internal consistency or reliability of a psychometric test score for a sample of examines. Cronbach's alpha reliability coefficient normally ranges between 0 and 1.

No	Cronbach Alpha	Description
1	> to 0.9	Excellent
2	> 0.8 but less than 0.9	Very good
3	>0.7 but less than 0.8	Good
4	> 0.6 but less than 0.7	Questionable
5	>0.5 but less than 0.6	Poor
6	< 0.5	Unacceptable

Table 3.1 Rule of Thumb of Cronbach's Alpha

Source: (Zikmund, 2010)

3.10. Ethical considerations

The research affirms the formality to comply with all the ethical standards in the beginning of primary analysis. The research strictly forbade partiality or self-disappointment. The legal challenges have been kept from being ignored. The commitments and agreements were met using knowledge and analysis methods correctly. In the context of data security, confidentiality and data privacy, the research study and survey were created. In addition the consent of the respondents was necessary for the survey and proactive mentoring was undertaken for the confidential correspondence, the details of the respondents and the documents. The professional competence has been granted to comply with the privacy and confidentiality policies and laws. In performing the study, a data protection law was observed. The manipulation or interpretation of data or respondents has been strictly regulated to ensure an honest study result. Information from respondents or the methods and correspondence will not be shared with others during the study, but only for research purposes. Therefore, the questionnaire was only issued to workers with consent approval because of the sensitive nature of the questions.

CHAPTER FOUR: DATA PRESENTATION, ANALYSIS, AND INTERPRETATION

4.1. INTRODUCTION

This chapter presents the data analysis and discussion of the research findings obtained from data collected from the survey questionnaire. Responses for the measures on the questionnaire are summarized and presented using tables and charts to facilitate easy understanding. The demographic profiles of the study sample have been described using descriptive statistics and also different inferential statistics were employed in order to analyze data obtained from the survey. Accordingly, standard multiple regressions were used to test hypothesis and achieve the study objective that focuses on identifying an organizational culture trait with higher contribution to the dependent variable. Furthermore, Pearson correlation coefficient and Cronbach's Alpha coefficient were used to test goodness and internal consistency of the measure.

4.2 .Survey Response Rate

A Total of 135 questionnaires were administered and a total of 122 questionnaires were collected of which 4 were incomplete thus 118 questionnaires were subject for the analysis which is 87.4% response rate. According to Mugenda and Mugenda (2003) the statistically significant response rate for analysis should be at least 50%.

The questionnaire were developed in five scales ranging from five to one; where 1 represents strongly disagree, 2 agree, 3 neutral (no opinion), 4 agree, and 5 strongly agree. To make easy interpretation, the following ranges of values were reassigned to each scale: mean scored value less than 3 considered as "Disagree", mean scored value greater than 3 considered as "Agree" and the mean scored value equal to 3 considered as "Neutral" (cited in Yonas, 2013). Descriptive statistics were used and also correlation and regression analysis were conducted for scale typed questionnaires. In order to know the current information regarding the level of change management, the entire questionnaires were used to analysis the response of each respondent.

After coding and entry of data into SPSS version 25, the first analysis conducted was to check the reliabilities of the scales used in the data collection instrument. According to Malhotra& Birks

(2007), reliability is the extent to which a measurement reproduces consistent results if the process of measurement were to be repeated. Cronbach-alpha, a widely used measure of internal consistency, was run using SPSS version 25 and all of the scales used for this study are found to be reliable as their respective alpha values are higher than 0.7, and for most closer to 1. The cronbach - alpha of each scale is presented in the following table.

Table 4.2. Reliability Statistics

Cronbach's Alpha	N of Items
.746	3

Source: own survey result (2023)

4.2. Demographic Profile of Respondents

This section summarizes the demographic characteristics of the sample, which includes age of the respondent, gender, education level, and work experience. The purpose of the demographic analysis in this research is to describe the characteristics of the sample such as the proportion of males and females in the sample, range of age, and education level, so that the analysis could be more meaningful for readers.

4.3.1. Gender

In terms of gender, respondents were more of males as compared to male (female 28 %, male 72 %). This shows that females are not equally distributed with male in UNECA.

		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Cumulative Percent
Valid	Male	85	72.0	72.0	72.0
	Female	33	28.0	28.0	100.0
	Total	118	100.0	100.0	

Table 4.3.Gender

Source: own survey result (2023)

4.3.2. Age

Regarding the age of respondents, the sample population is largely dominated by the age group of 41-50 (43.2%) followed by the group comprise age above 50 years (25.4%). This indicates that most of the sample populations are not youngsters. The age group between the years 20-30 and 31-40 years consists of 12.7 %, and 18.6 % respectively.

Table 4.4. Age

					Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Percent
Valid	20-30 years	15	12.7	12.7	12.7
	31-40 years	22	18.6	18.6	31.4
	41-50 years	51	43.2	43.2	74.6
	above 50 years	30	25.4	25.4	100.0
	Total	118	100.0	100.0	

Source: own survey result (2023)

4.3.3. Education level

In terms of education, the distribution is not very equally distributed. 11.9% of respondents were below high school grades, 15.3 % of respondents were high school complete diploma, 44.9 % of respondent's attained Diploma and the remaining 28 % of respondents have first degree and above.

Table 4.5. Educational level								
				Valid	Cumulative			
		Frequency	Percent	Percent	Percent			
Valid	Below High School	14	11.9	11.9	11.9			
	high school complete	18	15.3	15.3	27.1			
	Diploma	53	44.9	44.9	72.0			
	BA/Bsc	33	28.0	28.0	100.0			
	Total	118	100.0	100.0				

r

Source: own survey result (2023)

Table 4.6. response rate on Reason for using the Bank

					Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Percent
Valid	Proximity	19	16.1	16.1	16.1
	Service quality	17	14.4	14.4	30.5
	Trustworthiness	77	65.3	65.3	95.8
	good relationship	5	4.2	4.2	100.0
	Total	118	100.0	100.0	

Source: own Survey result, 2023

As depicted in the table above majority of customers are using commercial bank of Ethiopia due to trustworthiness. Based the information above 16.1% use the bank due to proximity, 14.4% use the bank due to service quality, 4.2% due to good relationship. But the majority (65.3%) of respondents replied that they are using the bank due to Trustworthiness.

4.4. Descriptive Analysis

Descriptive statistics describe data in terms of measures of central tendency. Descriptive statistics are the most efficient means of summarizing the characteristics of large sets of data. In a statically analysis, the analyst calculates one number or a few numbers that reveal something about characteristics of large sets of data. Cooper and Emory (1995). The descriptive statics used in this study were frequency, Mean and standard deviations.

According to Aakeret al. (2004), a frequency is a report of the number of responses that a question has received. The arithmetic mean (the mean) is defined as the sum of the values in the data group divided by the number of values. The square root of the variance is called the standard deviation, the variance being similar to the average deviation in that it is based on the difference between each value in the data set and the mean of the group (Kaizmier, 1988).The standard deviation records the extent to which scores deviate from the mean.

Table 4.7. Descriptive Statistics on Service Quanty			Std.
	Ν	Mean	Deviation
The bank has modern looking equipment	118	4.55	.500
The bank's physical features are visually appealing	118	4.47	.501
The bank's reception desk employees are neat appearing	118	4.55	.500
Materials associated with the service (such as pamphlets) are visually appealing at the bank	118	4.36	.483
When the bank promises to do something by a certain time, it does so	118	4.47	.501
When you have a problem, the bank shows a sincere interest in solving it.	118	4.51	.551
The bank performs the service right the first time.	118	4.32	.487
The bank provides its service at the time it promises to do so	118	4.45	.548
The bank insists on error free records	118	4.56	.515
Employees in the bank tell you exactly when the services will be performed	118	4.54	.500
Employees in the bank give your prompt service.	118	4.49	.502
Employees in the bank are always willing to help you	118	4.62	.488
Employees in the bank are never too busy to respond to your request	118	4.53	.501
The behavior of employees in the bank instills confidence in you	118	4.32	.487
You feel safe in your transactions with the bank	118	4.45	.548
Employees in the bank are consistently courteous with you	118	4.38	.538
Employees in the bank have the knowledge to answer your questions	118	4.35	.545
The bank gives you individual attention	118	4.47	.501
The bank has operating hours convenient to all its customers	118	4.61	.490
The bank employees who give your personal attention	118	4.38	.538
The employees of the bank understand your specific needs	118	4.38	.538
The bank has your best interests at heart	118	4.35	.545
Valid N (listwise)	118		

Table 4.7. Descriptive Statistics on Service Quality

Source: own Survey result, 2023

The bank has modern looking equipment. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.55 and 0.500 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that the bank has modern looking equipment.

The bank's physical features are visually appealing. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.47 and 0.501 respectively. This result indicates that the bank's physical features are visually appealing.

The bank's reception desk employees are neat appearing. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.55 and 0.500 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. This result shows that reveals that, the bank's reception desk employees are neat appearing.

Materials associated with the service (such as pamphlets) are visually appealing at the bank. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.36 and 0.483 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, Materials associated with the service (such as pamphlets) are visually appealing at the bank.

When the bank promises to do something by a certain time, it does so. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.47 and 0.501 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, the bank respects its promise to its customers

When you have a problem, the bank shows a sincere interest in solving it. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.51 and 0.551 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that that When you have a problem, the bank shows a sincere interest in solving it.

The bank performs the service right the first time. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.32 and 0.487 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that the bank performs the service right the first time.

The bank provides its service at the time it promises to do so. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.56 and 0.515 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, the bank provides its service at the time.

The bank insists on error free records. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.56and 0.515 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that the bank insists on error free records.

Employees in the bank tell you exactly when the services will be performed. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.54 and 0.500 respectively. This result indicates that employees in the bank tell you exactly when the services will be performed.

Employees in the bank give your prompt service. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.49 and 0.502 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study is agreed. This result reveals that, Employees in the bank gain prompt service.

Employees in the bank are always willing to help you. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.62 and 0.488 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. This result reveals that, Employees in the bank are always willing to help customers.

Employees in the bank are never too busy to respond to your request. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.53 and 0.501 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Employees in the bank are never too busy to respond to your request.

The behavior of employees in the bank instills confidence in you. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.32 and 0.487 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, The behavior of employees in the bank instills confidence in customers.

You feel safe in your transactions with the bank. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.45 and 0.548 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, customers feel safe in your transactions with the bank.

Employees in the bank are consistently courteous with you. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.538 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Employees in the bank are consistently courteous with customers.

Employees in the bank have the knowledge to answer your questions. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.35 and 0.545 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. This result reveals that, Employees in the bank have the knowledge to answer customer's questions

The bank gives you individual attention. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.47 and 0.501 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that the bank gives customers individual attention.

The bank has operating hours convenient to all its customers. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.61 and 0.490 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, the bank has operating hours convenient to all its customers.

The bank employees who give your personal attention. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.538 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, manager spends time teaching and coaching employees.

The employees of the bank understand your specific needs. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.538 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, The employees of the bank understand your specific needs.

The bank has your best interests at heart. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.55 and 0.45 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that The bank has your best interests at heart.

Table 4.8. Descriptive Statistics on customer satisfaction							
			Std.				
	Ν	Mean	Deviation				
I think I did a right thing that I selected my bank	118	4.47	.518				
Bank always exceed in my expectation while offering me the services	118	4.38	.538				
Bank's service exactly meets my requirement	118	4.62	.488				
I feel good that branch manager knows me personally	118	4.53	.501				
I feel happy after every visit of the bank	118	4.32	.487				
Bank is having strong mechanism in case of service failure	118	4.35	.545				
Bank offers me compensation in case of service failure	118	4.38	.569				
Bank apologizes if they fail to serve me on time	118	4.46	.517				
Bank always takes care of my special requirement	118	4.58	.495				
Bank is having many no. of the branches	118	4.35	.545				
Location of bank is very convenient to commute	118	4.38	.569				
Valid N (listwise)	118						

Source: own survey result, 2023

I think I did a right thing that I selected my bank. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.47 and 0.518 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. This implies that customers were right in selecting the bank.

Bank always exceed in my expectation while offering me the service. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.538 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, Bank always exceed in customers expectation while offering them the service.

Bank's service exactly meets my requirement. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.62 and 0.488 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Bank's service exactly meets my requirement.

I feel good that branch manager knows me personally. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.53 and 0.501 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding customers feel good that branch manager knows them personally.

I feel happy after every visit of the bank. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.32 and 0.487 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that customers feel happy after every visit of the bank.

Bank is having strong mechanism in case of service failure. People are willing to stick their necks out and take risks. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.35 and 0.545 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Bank have a strong mechanism in case of service failure. Bank offers me compensation in case of service failure. There is an emphasis on being on the cutting edge. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.569 respectively. This reveals that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. Therefore, this result shows that, Bank offers me compensation in case of service failure.

Bank apologizes if they fail to serve me on time. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.46 and 0.517 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding Bank apologizes if they fail to serve me on time.

Bank always takes care of my special requirement. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.58 and 0.495 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Bank always takes care of my special requirement.

Bank is having many no. of the branches. Trying new things and prospecting for opportunities are valued. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.35 and 0.545 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Bank is having many no. of the branches.

Location of bank is very convenient to commute. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.569 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Location of bank is very convenient to communicate. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.569 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study question for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.569 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study question result shows 4.38 and 0.569 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this

study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that the glue that holds the UN-ECA together is the emphasis on achievement and goal accomplishments, aggressiveness and winning are common themes.

Tuble 47: Descriptive Statistics customer Doyany			Std.
	Ν	Mean	Deviation
I always recommend my bank to others	118	4.38	.569
I get best value for money from my bank	118	4.46	.517
I am never interested in the various service offerings of the competitors	118	4.58	.495
I would not prefer to switch to the other bank	118	4.55	.500
I am having personal emotions attached with the bank	118	4.49	.502
Overall I am very happy with my bank	118	4.58	.496
I consider myself loyal to the bank	118	4.37	.486
Valid N (list wise)	118		

Table 4.9. Descriptive Statistics customer Loyalty

Source: own survey result, 2023

I always recommend my bank to others. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.46 and 0.517 respectively. We can conclude from this finding that the institution has a clearly defined vision and strategy and changes are continually communicated with all stakeholders.

Priorities are set and continually communicated regarding change projects and other competing initiatives. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.46 and 0.517 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Priorities are set and continually communicated regarding change projects and other competing initiatives.

I would not prefer to switch to the other bank. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.55 and 0.500 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that change initiatives in the organization have an executive staff identified.

I am never interested in the various service offerings of the competitors 0. 4.58 and the mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.58 and 0.495 respectively. This

implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed. We can conclude from this finding that I am never interested in the various service offerings of the competitors

Change is managed effectively and change success is celebrated, both in private and in public. I am having personal emotions attached with the bank mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows 4.49 and 0.500 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was agreed. We can conclude from this finding that Change is managed effectively and change success is celebrated, both in private and in public.

Change initiatives are accurately tailored to the particular needs and concerns of each stakeholders group. The mean value and standard deviation for this study question result shows I am having personal emotions attached with the bank 4.49 502 respectively. This implies that the perception of respondents for this study was strongly agreed.

4.5. Inferential Analysis of the studying variables

4.5.1 Correlation Analysis

Correlations are the measure of the linear relationship between two variables. The correlation and regression analysis can be used to examine the presence of a linear relationship between two variables. They measure the strength and direction of a relationship between variables. A correlation coefficient has a value ranging from -1 to 1. Values that are closer to the absolute value of 1 indicate that there is a strong relationship between the variables being correlated whereas values closer to 0 indicates that there is little or no linear relationship. As described by Andy (2009), the correlation is a commonly used measure of the size of an effect: values of $\pm 0.10 - 0.29$ represent a small effect; $\pm 0.30 - 0.49$ is a medium effect and ± 0.50 and above is a large effect. The relationship between waste management practices environmental protection was investigated using Pearson correlation analysis. This provided correlation coefficients indicated the strength and direction of relationship. The p-value also indicated the probability of this relationship's significance. Correlation analysis shows the relationship between the variables of interest, hence to answer the proposed research questions the following correlation analysis is undertaken by the researcher.

 Table 4.10. Correlations Table

		SQT	CST	SLT
SQT	Pearson Correlation	1	.726**	.565**
	Sig. (2-tailed)		.000	.000
	Ν	118	118	118
CST	Pearson Correlation	.726**	1	.579**
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.000		.000
	Ν	118	118	118
SLT	Pearson Correlation	.565**	.579**	1
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	.000	
	Ν	118	118	118

**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

4.5.1.1 The Relationship between the studying variables

As table 4.10 above depicts, the Correlation coefficient customer satisfaction is found to be positive and significant with customer loyalty. (r = 0.579 * .565, p < 0.05). Similarly, a positive and significant correlation coefficient found between environments (r = 0.577, p < 0.05).

4.5.2. Tests of Assumptions of Regression Analysis

According to Field (2009) to run a linear regression, checking critical assumptions is essential and it is helpful to draw conclusion about the population under study. In this regard, multi co linearity and autocorrelation between variables were checked, and the results presented as follows.

4.5.2.1. Multicollinearity Test.

Multicollinearity occurs when more than two independent variables inter-correlated. When the predictor variables in the same direction model are correlated, they cannot independently predict the value of the independent variable. Thus, multi co linearity and autocorrelation between variables were checked to the determine relationship among independent variable.

Multicollinearity was tested in this study using the variance inflation factor (VIF) which quantifies the severity of multicollinearity in regression analysis. The VIF factor should not exceed 10, and should ideally be close to one. The below table shows there is no multicollinearity exist. Tolerance is an indicator of how much of the variability of the specified independent variable is not explained by the other independent variables in the model. If this value is very small (less than one), it indicates that the multiple correlation with other variables is high, suggesting

the possibility of multicollinearity. The below table confirms the absence of multicollinearity according to Collinearity Statistics. VIF factor did not exceed 10 and the tolerance is above 0.1 which shows us there is no multi- Collinearity problem.

			Standardized			Colline	earity	
			Coefficients			Statis	tics	
Mode	el	В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.	Tolerance VIF	
1	(Constant)	12.054	2.368		5.090	.000		
	CST	.198	.059	.357	3.345	.001	.473	2.116
	SQT	.099	.034	.306	2.862	.005	.423	2.006

Table 4.11. Coefficients table

a. Dependent Variable: SLT

Source: own survey result (2023)

The result shows that the tolerance value for each independent variable is (0.473, and, 0.423) respectively which is less than one; therefore, multi Co linearity assumption is not violated. This is also supported by the VIF value, which is 2.116 and 2,006 respectively and which is well below the cut-off 10 as shown in the coefficient table.

4.5.2.2. Auto-correlation Test

To determine the autocorrelation between observations Durbin – Watson test was used. The Durbin-Watson statistic ranges in value from 0 to 4. A value near 2 indicates non-autocorrelation; a value toward 0 indicates positive autocorrelation; a value toward 4 indicates negative autocorrelation. With Durbin Watson value of 2.611 which is close to 2, it can be confirmed that the assumption of independent error has almost certainly been met

Table 4.12. Model Summaryb

				Std.		Change Statistics				
			Adjusted	Error of	R					
		R	R	the	Square	F			Sig. F	Durbin-
Model	R	Square	Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2	Change	Watson
1	.616 ^a	.380	.369	.987	.380	35.223	2	115	.000	2.611

a. Predictors: (Constant), SQT, CST

b. Dependent Variable: SLT

4.5.3. Normality Test

As Field (2009), noted, the assumption of normality is important in research while using regression and helpful to generalize the results of the analysis beyond the sample collected. Accordingly, among several ways to check for the normality assumptions for linear regression analysis, it is advisable to inspect to see if a distribution is normal through a P–P plot (probability–probability plot). Therefore, to establish the validity of these assumptions, the researcher also checks for the normality for the residuals with bivariate through P-P plot as follows. The straight line in this plot represents a normal distribution, and the points represent the observed residuals. Therefore, in a perfectly normally distributed data set, all points will lie on the line (Field, 2009). Therefore, the assumptions of simple linear regression have been met and we can possibly assume that the model is accurate and can probably generalize to the population. The study used both methods of assessing normality; graphically using Normal Probability Plot (P-P) graph and numerically using Skewness and Kurtosis.



Figure 2. Histogram, Normality test

Source:-Own survey result (2023)

As the above figure shows, the frequency of distribution is normal curve, demonstrating that the data witness to the normality assumption. Moreover, the histogram is bell shaped which lead to infer that the residual (disturbance or errors) are normally distributed. Thus, no violations of the assumption normally distributed error term.

The normal probability plots were also used to test the normality assumption as shown on the normal p-plot figure. It shows the residuals were normally distributed around its mean of zero which indicates that the data were normally distributed and it was consistent with a normal distribution assumption. The p-plot figures confirmed the normality assumption.



Normal P-P Plot of Regression Standardized Residual

Figure 3. Normality P-P plot

Source: - Own survey result (2023)

4.6.4. Homoscedasticity

Homoscedasticity is the extent to which the data values for the dependent and independent variables have equal variances (Field 2009). At each level of the predictor variables, the variance of the residual terms should be constant. This just means that the residuals at each level of the predictors should have the same variance, therefore checking for this assumption is helpful for the fitness of the regression model. In this regard, to plot the Homoscedasticity analysis, as suggests by Field (2009), the researcher plot the standardized residuals, or errors (ZRESID) on the Y axis and the standardized predicted values of the dependent variable based on the model (ZPRED) on the X axis and the result is presented as follows. In this regard, as Field (2009) describes, the graph of *ZRESID and *ZPRED should look like a random array of dots evenly dispersed around zero,

if the assumption of Homoscedasticity has to be met. Likewise, as we shown in the below figure, the points are randomly and evenly dispersed throughout the plot and there are no obvious outliers on this cloud of dots which are spaced around zero. According to Garson (2012), Homoscedasticity helps as to check for the relationship under investigation is the same for the entire range of the dependent variable and lack of Homoscedasticity is shown by higher errors (residuals) for some portions of the range, which can be seen on the scatter plot? The variability in scores for independent variables should be similar at all values of the dependent variable. The scatter plot should show a fairly even rectangular shape along its length. The plot must show scores below and above zero points that means both positive and negative values. There should be Homoscedasticity before running multiple regression analysis, (the difference between the values of the observed and predicted dependent variable) is normally distributed, and that the residuals have constant variance (Burns & Burns, 2008). If the assumption of Homoscedasticity is violated (i.e. there is heteroscedasticity). Since the errors (the dots) are close to the line the graph has demonstrated Homoscedasticity of the study.

4.6. Multiple Regressions

After the study fulfilled the regression assumptions tests, next the researcher examined the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty. The researcher tested the four hypothesis set out to be tested at the beginning based on the regression analysis. The researcher believes that company can use the result of the regression analysis for future decision making via identifying which factors got the highest effect on customer loyalty.

				Std. Error		Chan	ge Statis	stics	
		R	Adjusted	of the	R Square	F			Sig. F
Model	R	Square	R Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2	Change
1	.726 ^a	.527	.523	1.547	.527	129.481	1	116	.000

a. Predictors: (Constant), SQT

Source: own survey result (2023)

				Std.		Chang	ge Statis	stics		
			Adjusted	Error of	R					
		R	R	the	Square	F			Sig. F	Durbin-
	R	Square	Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2	Change	Watson
1	.565 ^a	.320	.314	1.029	.320	54.468	1	116	.000	2.580

Table 4.14. Service Quality on Customer Loyalty

a. Predictors: (Constant), SQT

b. Dependent Variable: CLT

Table 4.15. Customer satisfaction on Customer Locality

				Std.		Chang	ge Stati	stics		
			Adjusted	Error of	R					
		R	R	the	Square	F			Sig. F	Durbin-
Model	R	Square	Square	Estimate	Change	Change	df1	df2	Change	Watson
1	.579 ^a	.336	.330	1.017	.336	58.622	1	116	.000	2.620

a. Predictors: (Constant), CST

b. Dependent Variable: CLT

Source: own survey result (2023)

The result of regression analysis of the independent variables service quality on the dependent variable customer loyalty indicates existence of positive and statistically significant effect. The model summary table Adjusted R-square value is 0.314 which means that 31.4 % of customer loyalty is explained by the variation of the independent variables and the other 62.6% is due to other independent variables not included in the model and the random error.

The result of regression analysis using customer satisfaction as independent variables on the dependent variable customer loyalty indicates existence of positive and statistically significant effect. The model summary table Adjusted R-square value is 0.314 which means that 33 % of customer loyalty is explained by the variation of the independent variables and the other 67% is due to other independent variables not included in the model and the random error.

Model		Sum of Squares	Df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	309.757	1	309.757	129.481	.000 ^b
	Residual	277.506	116	2.392		
	Total	587.263	117			

Table 4.16. Service Quality ON Customer Satisfaction ANOVA^a

a. Dependent Variable: CST

b. Predictors: (Constant), SQT

Source: own survey result (2023)

Table 4.17. customer satisfaction on customer Loyalty ANOVA^a

Model		Sum of Squares	Df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
1	Regression	60.646	1	60.646	58.622	.000 ^b
	Residual	120.006	116	1.035		
	Total	180.653	117			

a. Dependent Variable: CLT

b. Predictors: (Constant), CST

Source: own survey result (2023)

Table 4.18. Service Quality on Customer Loyalty Coefficients^a Table

				Standardized		
		Unstandardize	d Coefficients	Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	Т	Sig.
1	(Constant)	13.509	2.428		5.564	.000
	SQT	.182	.025	.565	7.380	.000

a. Dependent Variable: CLT

Source: own survey result (2023)

Table 4.19 Service quality on customer satisfaction Coefficients^a

		Unstandardiza	d Coofficients	Standardized Coefficients		
		Unstandardized Coefficients		Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	t	Sig.
1	(Constant)	7.343	3.648		2.013	.046
	SQT	.423	.037	.726	11.379	.000

a. Dependent Variable: CST

Source: own survey result (2023)

				Standardized		
		Unstandardize	d Coefficients	Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	Т	Sig.
1	(Constant)	15.726	2.051		7.666	.000
	CST	.321	.042	.579	7.656	.000

Table 4.20 Customer satisfaction on Customer Loyalty Coefficients^a

a. Dependent Variable: CLT

Source: own survey result, 2023

Table 4.21. Service quality on Customer Loyalty Coefficients

				Standardized		
		Unstandardize	d Coefficients	Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	Т	Sig.
1	(Constant)	13.509	2.428		5.564	.000
	SQT	.182	.025	.565	7.380	.000

a. Dependent Variable: CLT

Source: own survey result, 2023

Table 4.22. Aggregate Coefficients

				Standardized		
		Unstandardize	d Coefficients	Coefficients		
Model		В	Std. Error	Beta	Т	Sig.
1	(Constant)	12.054	2.368		5.090	.000
	SQT	.099	.034	.306	2.862	.005
	CST	.198	.059	.357	3.345	.001

a. Dependent Variable: CLT

Source: own survey result, 2023

In order to test the magnitude of the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty, a linear regression was performed. Results of regression analysis indicate that the regression model was valid (F=98.792, p= 0.000). However, the explanatory power of the regression model is medium as indicated by the adjusted R square value (.314.The table 4.16 above presents the coefficient of determination (R-squared) indicates the proportionate amount of variation in the response variable (customer loyalty) explained by the independent variable (service quality) in the

linear regression model. The larger the R-squared is the more variability is explained by the linear regression model.

In order to test the relationship between the customer satisfaction and customer loyalty, linear regression also performed. Results of regression analysis indicate that the regression model was valid (F=58.622, p= 0.000). However, the explanatory power of the regression model is very low as indicated by the high adjusted square value (0.33). Table shows the regression coefficients of customer satisfaction as independent variables and customer Loyalty dependent variable. Results indicate that customer satisfaction (p<0.05) influenced in a positive manner customer Loyalty.

From the above regression analysis table it can be seen that there is a positive and statistically significant relationship between service quality (the independent variable) and customer satisfaction (as the dependent variable). Thus 52.3% (R2 =.523) variation level customer satisfaction is explained by the independent variable service quality. On the coefficient table it finds the beta value which measures of how strongly each independent variable influences the dependent variable. From this the regression equation is derived as:

Regression Equation

 $\mathbf{Y} = \mathbf{a} + \mathbf{b}\mathbf{X}\mathbf{1} + \mathbf{b}\mathbf{X}\mathbf{2} + \mathbf{e}$

Y= 12.05+ 0.09SQ+0.198CS+e

Customer satisfaction = 4.23+0.09SQ

Customer Loyalty= 3.21+.198CS +e

4.7. Multiple Linear Regression Equation Interpretation

The regression result of the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty showed, customer satisfaction was the predictor variable that contributes to the variation of the dependent variable customer loyalty. Coefficient of 0.198 indicates that one unit increase in customer satisfaction results in the improvement of customer loyalty by 0.198 units, holding other factors constant. Therefore, customer satisfaction were the significant factor that causes the increase of customer loyalty.

The regression result of the effect of leadership styles on organizational culture showed, leadership styles was the predictor variable that contributes to the variation of the dependent variable

organizational culture by considering the mediating variable organizational culture as a dependent variable. Coefficient of 0.617 indicates that one unit increase in leadership styles results in the improvement of organizational culture by 0.617 units, holding other factors constant. Therefore, a leadership style was the significant factor that causes organizational culture.

The regression result of the effect of customer by taking the mediating factor as an independent variable on customer loyalty showed, customer satisfaction was the predictor variable that contributes to the variation of the dependent variable customer loyalty. Coefficient of 0.321 indicates that one unit increase in organizational culture results in the improvement of customer loyalty by 0.321 units, holding other factors constant. Therefore, organizational customer satisfaction was the significant factor that customer loyalty.

Regarding the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty, the regression result shows that, when customer satisfaction mediates the independent variable service quality) and dependent variable (customer loyalty), the effect reduced by 19.3%. Therefore, customer satisfaction couldn't be the mediating factor that predicts the variation in the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty.

4.8. Hypothesis Testing

A statistical hypothesis is an assertion or conjecture concerning one or more populations. To prove that a hypothesis is true, or false, with absolute certainty, we would need absolute knowledge. That is, we would have to examine the entire population. Instead, hypothesis testing concerns on how to use a random sample to judge if it is evidence that supports or not the hypothesis.

Hypothesis 1

There is a positive and significant association between service quality and customer satisfaction.

The outcome of correlation coefficient, as presented in table 4.14 above, showed that service quality has a positive and significant relation with customer satisfaction (β =.423), at 95% confidence level (p<0.05). Therefore, the researcher accepted the hypothesis that stated service quality has positive and significant relationship with customer loyalty.

Hypothesis2.

There is a positive and significance association between customer satisfaction and service loyalty.

According to the correlation coefficient, as presented in table 4.14 above, indicated that customer satisfaction has a positive and significant relation with customer loyalty ($\beta = 0.321$), at 95% confidence level (p<0.05). Hence, the research accepted the hypothesis that stated customer satisfaction has a positive effect on customer loyalty.

Hypothesis 3

There is a positive and significance association between service quality and service loyalty. In order to check the mediating effect of the relationship customer satisfaction and customer loyalty, first, whether the independent variable service quality is significantly predict the mediator variable customer satisfaction was checked, when regresses service quality on customer satisfaction, the result showed that coefficient β = .423 . This indicates that service quality is a significant predictor of mediating variable that predict customer loyalty. Secondly, whether the service quality is a significant predictor of the dependent variable customer loyalty was checked, when we regressed the service quality on customer loyalty, the result showed that the coefficient = .182 Sig.000. This indicates that that leadership styles is significantly predicting dependent variable change management. Therefore, the mediating customer satisfaction had no a mediating role because the effect of service quality on customer loyalty reduced by .241. Therefore, customer satisfaction is not a good mediating predictor between the relation service quality and customer

Hypothesis 4

loyalty.

There is a positive and significance relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and service loyalty

The outcome of correlation coefficient, as presented in table 4.14 above, showed that service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty has a positive and significant relation among each other.

CHAPTER FIVE: SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSION, AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1. Introduction

This chapter deals with summary of major finding, conclusions and recommendations. The main purpose of the study was to evaluate the mediating effects of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty in the case of commercial bank of Ethiopia Tefera Degfe Branch. To achieve the objective of the study, relevant literature was reviewed and quantitative and qualitative data were collected through questionnaire and interview filled by employees or teachers. The data collected through questionnaire were presented, analyzed, interpreted and discussed using statistical package for social science (SPSS 25) version. Thus, based on the analysis the following findings were written, conclusions drawn, and recommendations forwarded for commercial bank of Ethiopia Tefera Degfe Branch practitioners.

5.2. Summary of Findings

- The results bring to the following important findings on the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty. The findings are likely to have great implications for commercial bank of Ethiopia Tefera Degfe Branch.
- SERVQUAL model was used to measure service quality dimensions. A total of 118 customers provided usable data for analysis. Descriptive statistics, Pearson product moment correlation analysis and regression analysis. In order to achieve the objectives of this research, SERVQUAL instrument was considered to be reliable and valid measure of dimensions of service quality.
- From the mean result it could understand that respondents slightly satisfied and loyal to their respective banks. It is observed that customers were most satisfied with tangibility dimension of service quality followed by assurance. The finding from the correlation result reveals that there is a positive and significant relationship between the service quality dimensions, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty.
- ➢ Overall service quality dimensions regressed with dependent variable customer satisfaction and customer loyalty results revealed in the model summery R^2 = .330 and .314 respectively. It implies that 33 % of variation in customer satisfaction and 31.4 % of the

variation in customer loyalty is explained by independent variable service quality dimensions. This shows that these three constructs are strongly and positively correlated each other. If banks deliver superior quality service customers will be satisfied and become loyal to their respective bank.

Further mediation effect of customer satisfaction has been tested by more conveniently using regression analysis. The result revealed that mediating effect of customer satisfaction on service quality and customer loyalty relationship is 0.16 with a 95% confidence interval which did not include zero; that is said to be the effect was slightly significantly greater that of the direct effect of service quality on customer loyalty.

5.3. Conclusion

The study was conducted to examine the mediating the mediating effect of customer satisfaction on the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty. Therefore, the following conclusions were drawn based on summary of findings. From this result of all service quality dimensions it can said that customers who get from Tefera Degfe branch were slightly satisfied with the banking service. This indicates that improvements of service quality should be conducted in all the five service quality dimensions, especially the dimensions of responsiveness and empathy. Pearson correlation result indicates that there is positive and significant relationship between the service quality dimensions, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty.

Customer satisfaction also positively correlated with customer loyalty. Accordingly, the results of this study confirmed the theory of literatures regarding the relationship between service quality dimensions, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. In addition five dimensions of service quality are positively correlated in each other thus indicates that the change in one of the service quality dimension will positively affect the other service quality dimension. However the regression analysis revealed that responsiveness, assurance and empathy dimensions are a significant predictor of customer satisfaction. Thus responsiveness has the highest beta value on the regression model and is the dominant service quality dimension with the highest effect on customer satisfaction. But responsiveness has lowest mean value 2.867 compared with other service quality dimensions as showed in descriptive analysis which implies that employees of Tefera Degfe branch are not meet the expectation of customers with the responsiveness dimension of service quality so that banks should work hard to maintain it in the future.

Accordingly we look to the overall regression result 52.3% of variation in customer satisfaction was explained by the service quality dimensions which imply that 67% of variation in customer satisfaction is explained by other factors. When we look to customer loyalty 31.4% of variation in customer loyalty is explained in independent variable service quality and 30.8% of variation in loyalty explained by other factors. Customer satisfaction is a significant predictor of customer loyalty and 33% of variation in customer loyalty explained by customer satisfaction. The study empirically demonstrates Customer Satisfaction as an intervening variable that offers directional influence to the relationship between Service Quality and Customer Loyalty. Another interesting finding stems from the statistical significance of the direct relationship between service quality and customer loyalty which implies that customer satisfaction partially mediates the aforementioned relationship. In ended it can be concluded that there is positive relationship between service quality, customer satisfaction and customer loyalty. Customer satisfaction has a positive and strong relationship with customer loyalty. Further customer satisfaction is mediates in the relationship between service quality and customer loyalty in Tefera Degafe branch. The result confirmed with previous studies (Shanka M. S., 2012) (Srivastava, 2009) (Tsegaye, 2016)(Fasih, 2014).

5.4. Recommendation

Based on the above findings, to improve change management, the researcher recommends the followings.

- In this study customers not well satisfied and loyal in all service quality dimensions thus, improvement of service quality is a critical issue to satisfy and retain customers. Therefore it is better that banker's work hard to deliver superior quality service to the customer's which is base for sustainable differentiation and competitiveness in the banking industry
- In our current environment services preference of customers and their demands keeps on changing at a rapid speed and the bank should operate proactively in meeting its customers' needs and preferences. So that bank managers develop and implement customer-oriented service strategies to identify customers' needs and expectations in order to serve them better.
- It is better banks have to train customer service officers and tellers especially in responsive, assurance and empathy dimensions of service quality to satisfy and retain its customer.

It is better that bank managers should measure service quality regularly to assure they are keep meeting customers' expectations, and consider customizing their superior services to enhance customer satisfaction and customer loyalty.

5.3. Limitations

The current study presented exhibit limitations that should be considered. The limitations are as follows:

- This study covers only Tefera Degfe Branch customers. The remaining banks that have a role in the banking sector in Addis Ababa town were excluded from this study.
- The scope of the study limited only in Addis Ababa town so that the result of this study may not generalize banks operating out of research area.
- Other variables may influence customer satisfaction and loyalty in the banking industry, like price, convenience, interest rates loan policy etc.

5.4. Recommendations for Future Research

Several issues, associated with the limitations inherent in this study, require further research considerations. So that a better, future researchers include all types of banks operate in Addis Ababa town. In addition, better it should be consider factors influence customer satisfaction and customer loyalty in the research model.

References

- Adem, U. (2015). A Study on Services Quality of Commercial Banks in Dire Dawa, Ethiopia : A Comparative Study of Public and Private Banks. *Eroupean Journal of Business and Management*, 7(28), 73–78.
- Al-Marri, K. A. (2007). Excellence inservice; an emprical study of te UAE banking sector. *International Journal of Quality & reliability management*, 24(2), 164-176.
- Alvin C. Burns, R. F. (2010). Marketing Research. USA: Prentice Hall, .
- Amin, M. I. (2011). The role of customer satisfaction in inhancing customer loyalty in MalaysianIslamic banks. *Service Industries Journal*, 31(9/10), 1519-1532.
- Anderson, E. W. (2000). Strengthing the satisfaction-profit chain. *Journal of service Research*, Vol. 3, No.2, p.107-120.
- Angur, M. N. (1999). SQ in the Banking Industry: an Assessment in a Developing Economy. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 17(3): 116-125.
- Babakus, E. a. (1992). AN Emprical Assessment of the SERVQUALScale. *Journal of business research*, 24(3),253.
- Babbie, E. &. (2008). *The practice of social research 8th ed.* Cape Town: Oxford University Press.
- Bahia, K. a. (2000). A reliable and valid measurement scale for perceived service quality of banks. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, vol. 18, n. 2, pp.84-91.
- Baron, R. M. (1986). The moderator-mediator variable distinction in social psychological research: Conceptual, strategic and statistical considerations. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 51, 1173-1182.
- Baumann, C. E. (2011). 'Modelling customer loyalty in financial services: A hybrid of formative and reflective constructs. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, Vol. 29, Issue 3, pp. 247-267.
- Bearded, W. &. (1983). selected deteminants of customer satisfaction and compliant Report. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 20(1), 21-28.
- Bei, L. a. (2006). The determinants of customer loyalty: an analysis of intangible factors in three service industries. *International Journal of Commerce and Management*, 16(3/4), 162-177.

- Belayneh, A. A. (2015). Customers" Satisfaction towards Remittance Service in Ethiopian Banking Industry: Evidence from Commercial Bank of Ethiopia. *International Journal of Research (IJR)*, Vol-2, Issue-1.
- Berry, L. Z. (1988). The service-quality puzzle. business Horizons, Vol.31 No.5, pp.35-43.
- Bitner, M. (1990). Evaluation of sevice encounter: The of physical surrounding & employee sresponse. *Journal of Marketing*, 54,69-82.
- Blery, E. B. (2009). Service quality and customer retention in mobile telephony. *Journal of targeting, Measuring and Analysis for marketing*, 17(1), 27-37.
- Bloemer JMM & Kasper HDP. (1994). The Impact of Satisfaction on Brand Loyalty Urging on Classifying Satisfaction and Brand Loyalty. *Journal of Consumer Satisfaction, Dissatisfaction and Complaining Behavior*, Vol. 7, 152-160.
- Bloemer, J. &. (1989). The illusion of consumer satisfaction. *Journal of Consumer Satisfaction, Dissatisfaction and Complaining Behaviour*, (2), 43-80.
- Bloemer, J. M. (1999). Customer loyalty in high and lowinvolvement service settings; the moderating impact of positive emotions. *Journal of Marketing Management*, 75, 315-330.
- Bloemer, J. R. (1998). Investigating Drivers of Bank Loyalty: the complex relationship between image, service quality and satisfaction. *The International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 16(7), 276.
- Bloemer, M. M. (1995). The complex relationship between consumer satisfaction and brand loyalty. *Journal of economic psychology*, 16, 311-329.
- Bolton, R. N. (1991). A Longitudinal Analysis of the Impact of Service change on customer attitude. *Journal of Marketing*, , 55 (1), 1991, 1-10.
- Bolton, R. N. (1991). A Longitudinal Analysis of the Impact of Service. Changes on Customer Attitudes,". *Journal of Marketing*, *55* (1), 375–384.
- Boulding.W, K. S. (1993). A dynamic process model of service quality: from expectations to behavioral intentions. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 30/(1), 7-27.
- Brensinger, R. &. (1990). Can the SERVQUAL scale be generalized to business to -business service? AMA's Summer Educators'conference proceedings (p. 289). In Kowledge Development in Marketing.

- Brown, K. A. (1993). Organizational obstacles: Links with financial performance, customer satisfaction, and job satisfaction in a service environment. *Human Relations*, ., 46(6), 725-757.
- Butcher, K. S. (2001). Evaluative and relational influences on service loyalty. *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, 12(3/4), 310-327.
- Caruana, A. M. (2000). service quality and satisfaction; the moderating role of value. *Eropean Journal of Marketing*, 34(11), 1338-1352.
- Chang, H. H. (2009). The impact of e-service quality, customer satisfaction and loyalty on emarketing: Moderating effect of perceived value. *Total Quality Management and Business Excellence*, , 20(4), 423.
- Cheng, T. L. (2008). The driving forces of customer loyalty: a study of internet service. *International Journal of E-business Research*, 4(4), 26-42.
- Chu, K.-M. (2009). The construction model of customer trust, percived value and customer loyalty. *The Journal of American Acadamy of Business.*, 14(2), 98-103.
- Cohen, L. a. (1988). Research Methods in Education. London: Croom Helm.
- Constantinescu, F. a. (2007). Customer Retention and Customer Loyalty in the Financial Services Industry Definitions, Importance and Benefits, Anul 2, Nr. 1: 221-237.
- Cooper, B. K. (2015). An Introduction to Moderated Mediation.
- Cooper, D. a. (2003). Business Research Methods. 8th Edition. Boston: McGraw-Hill Irwin,.
- Creswell, J. W. (1998). *Quality inquiry and research design: choosing among five traditions*. London: SAGE publication.
- Crompton, J. &. (1989). Users perceptions of the relative importance of service quality dimensions in selected public recreation programmes. *Leisure scineses*, 11(4), 367-375.
- Cronin, J. &. (1992). Measuring service quality: A Reexamination and extension;. *Journal of Marketing*, Vol,56,No.3, pp.55-68.
- Cronin, J. B. (2000). Assessing the effects of quality, value, customer satisfaction on consumer behavioural intentions in service environments. *Journal of Retailing*, 76(2), 193-218.
- Curry, A. (1999). "Innovation in public service management. *Managing Service Quality*, Vol.9, No.3, pp. 180-190.
- Damena, B. H. (2011). AN EMPIRICAL STUDY ON ETHIOPIAN COMMERCIAL BANKS. 11-14.

- Das, M. &. (2005). *Basic Marketing Research: A Decision making approach with SPSS*. USA: Pearson Education Inc.
- Das, M. (2009). *Marketing Research An Applied Oreintation*. 5th edition, Pearson Education Inc.
- Dawson, S. M. (2002). Business Strategy Review. *London Business School Review*, Volume 13, Issue 4 pp.1-76.
- Dick, A. a. (1994). Customer Loyalty Toward an Integrated Conceptual Framework. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 22, 99-113.
- Doney, P. &. (1997). An Examination of the nature of trust in buyer-seller relationships. *Journal of*, 61, 2, 35-51.
- Ehigie, B. O. (2006). Correlates of customer loyalty to their banks ; a case study in Nigeria. *Internationa Journal of Bank Marketing*, 24(7), 49-508.
- Fasih, M. M. (2014). Impact of Service Quality on Customer Satisfaction and Customer Loyalty: Evidence from Banking sector. *Pakistan Journal of Commerce and Social Sciences*, Vol. 8 (2), 331-354.
- Finn David W., C. W. (1991). An evaluation of SERVQUAL scale in retailing setting in advance in consumer research vol.18. *Journal of Relationship Marketing*, 275-285.
- Fornell, C. (1992). National customer satisfaction barometer; the Swedish experience. *Journal of Marketing*, 56(1), 6-21.
- Foss, B. a. (2001). Sucessful customer relationship marketing. London: Kogan page limited.
- G.S Sureshchandar, C. R. (2003). ustomer perceptions of service quality in banking sector of a developing economy; a critical analysis. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, Vol.21, issue 5.
- G.S Sureshshchndar chandrasekharan Rajendran, R. A. (2003). customer perception of service quality in the bank sector of a developing economy: a cristal analysis. *International Journal of Bank marketing Vol.21, Issue 5.*
- Garbarino, E. &. (1999). the different roles of satisfaction, trust and commitment in customer relationships. *Journal of marketing*, Vol.63 No.2 pp 70-87.
- Gedey.B. (1990). *Money, Banking and insurance in Ethiopia*. Addis Ababa (in Amharic): Berhanena selam printing press.
- Gerpott, T. R. (2001). Customer retention, loyalty and satisfaction in the German mobile cellular telecommunications market. *Telecommunications policy* 25, 249-269.

- Gerrard P, C. J. (2001). Bank service quality: a comparison between a publicly quoted bank and a governmen bank in Singapore. *J. Finan. Serv. Mark*, 6(1): 50-66.
- Gitomer, J. (1998). *Customer satisfaction is Worthless, Customer loyalty is Priceless*. Texas: Bard press.
- Glaveli, N. P. (2006). Bank service quality: evidence from five Balkan country. *Managing Service Quality*, 16(4), 380-391.
- H.M.G.Y.J.Hennayake. (2017). Impact of Service Quality on Customer Satisfaction of Public Sector Commercial Banks: A Study on Rural Economic Context. *International Journal of Scientific and Research Publications*, Volume 7, Issue 2.
- Hayes, A. F. (2012). PROCESS: A Versatile Computational Tool for Observed Variable Mediation, Moderation, and Conditional Process Modeling. Retrieved from http://www.afhayes.com/public/process2012.pdf.
- Hayes, B. (2008). The true test of loyalty. Quality progress, 41(6), 20-26.
- Herington, C. &. (2009). E-retailing by banks; E-service quality and its importance to custoomer satisfaction. *Eroupean Journal of Marketing*, 43(9/10).
- Heskett. (1997). The service profit chain. New York: The Free Press.
- Ibànez, V. A. (2006). Antecedents of Customer loyalty in residential energy marketers: service quality, satifaction, trust and switching costs. *The Service Industry Journal*, 26(6),633-650.
- Ibrahim, Y. (2015). Analysis of Factors Affecting Service Quality : A Survey Study in Bank of Abyssinia Alula AbanegaBranch , Mekelle Ethiopia. *InternationalJournal of Management and Social Science Research*, 4(3), 36–43.
- Iglesias, M. P. (2004). Perceived quality and price: their impact on the satisfaction of restaurant customer. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Managemen*, 16(6), 373-379.
- Ignatius Ikechukwu Uche, A. O. (2012). Is Customer Satisfaction an Indicator of Customer Loyalty? *Australian Journal of Business and Management Research*, Vol.2 No.07 [14-20].
- Ismail, I. I. (2006). Service quality, client satisfaction and loyalty towards audit firms:perception of Malaysianpublic listed companies. *Managerial auditing Journal*, 21(7) 738-756.
- Jabatan Pendaftar Latihan Jude Sondoh, G. H. (2017). BASIC AND ADVANCED QUANTITATIVE DATA ANALYSIS USING SPSS.

- Jabnoun, N. H. (2003). Measuring percived service quality at UAE commercial banks. International Journal of Quality and Reliability Management, 20(4/5),458-472.
- Jacobucci, D. O. (2001). Distinguishing Service Quality and Customer Satisfaction : The Voice of the Consumer, . *Journal of Consumer Psychology*, 4(3), 277–303.
- Johneston, R. (1997). Identify the critical determinants of service quality in retail banking: Importance and Effect. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, , 15(4), 111-116.
- Johnston, R. (2001). "Linking complaint management to profit", *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, . , 12, 1, 60-9.
- Jonson Lind L., M. J. (1988). Service quality determinants and effectiveness in the real state brokerage industry. *The Journa of Real State Research*, 3, 21-36.
- Joseph F. Hair, J. W. (2006). Multivariate Data Analysis. New York: Published by Pearson.
- Juneja, D. A. (2011). Adaptability of total quality management to service sector. *International Journal of Computer Science & Management Studies*, Vol. 11, Issue 02, pp. 2231–5268.
- Karatape, O. Y. (2005). "Measuring service quality of banks: scale development and validation". *Journal of Retailing and Consumer services*, Vol. 12 No. 5, pp. 373-83.
- Karatepe, O. (2011). Service quality, customer satisfaction and loyalty; the moderating role of gender. *Journal of Business Economics and Management*, 20(4), 278-300.
- Kheng, L. M. (2010). The impact of service quality on customerloyalty: a study of banks in Penang. Malaysia. *International Journal of Marketing Studies*, 2(2): 57-66.
- Kotler, P. a. (2009). Marketing Management. New Jersey: Pearson Education Inc.
- Kotler, P. B. (1999). *Marketing for hospitality and tourism 2nd edition*. upper saddle rever: Prentice-Hall.
- Ladhari, R. L. (2011). Bank service quality; compering Canadian and Tunisian customer perception. *International Journal of Bank marketing*, 29(3), 224-246.
- Lee, H. S. (2010a). Effects of perceived value and service quality on customer satisfaction in the mobile phone service market. INFORMATION. An International Interdisciplinary Journal, . , 13(4), 1207-1218.
- Leila Rahmani-Nejad, Z. F. (2014). Service Quality, Relationship Quality and Customer Loyalty (Case Study: Banking Industry in Iran). *Open Journal of Social Sciences*, Vol.02 No.04 pp.6.

- Levesque, T. a. (1996). Determinants of customer satisfaction in retail banking. *International Journal of Bank Marketing*, 14(7), 12-20.
- Lewis, B. R. (2006). The antecedents of consumer loyalty in retail banking. *Journal ofConsumer Behaviour*, 5(1), 15-31.
- Liu, Y. L. (2008). Relationship stability, trust and relational risk in marketing channels: Evidence from China. *Industrial Marketing Management*, 37(4), 432-446.
- Lo Liang Kheng, O. M. (2010). The Impact of Service Quality on Customer Loyalty: A Study of. *International Journal of Marketing Studies*, Vol. 2, No. 2.
- Luk, S. a. (2002). "Perception Gaps in customer expectations: Managers versusservice providers and customers. *The Service Industries Journal*, Vol.22, No.2, April, pp. 109-128.
- Magesh, R. (2010). A Study on Quality of Service as a Tool for Enhancement of Customer satisfaction in banks. *Global Journal of Finance and Management*, , 2, 123-133.
- Malhotra, N. K. (2005). dimensions of service quality in developed and developing economies: multi-country cross-cultural comparision. *International Marketing Review*, , 22(3), 256-278.
- Mark Saunders, P. L. (2003). *Research Methods for Business Students*. England London: Financial Times/Prentice Hall, .
- Mensah.R, H. &. (2006). Determinants of Ghanian Bank service quality in a uiversalbanking dispensation. *Banks Bank Syst*(1(2), 69-81.
- Mittal, V. &. (2001). Satisfaction, repurchase intention and repurchase behaviour; Investigating the moderating effect of customers characteristics. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 381, 131-142.
- Mosahab, R. M. (2010). Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Loyalty : A Test of Mediation. *International Business Research*, 3(4), 72–80.
- Mugenda, O. M. (1999). *Research Methods: Quantitative and qualitative approches*. Nirob: Acts press.
- Muslim A. and Isa, Z. (2005). "Islamic banking in Malaysia: An empirical analysis of service quality and customer satisfaction". *Proceeding of Seminar Finance and Islamic Economics*, pp.29-30.
- Muyeed, M. A. (2012). Customer perception on service quality in retail banking in developing countries-A case study. *International Journal of marketing studies*, 4(1), 116-122.
- NCA. (2006). Competition in Nordic Retail Banking. Nordic competition authorities.

- Ndubisi, N. (2005). Customer loyalty and antecedents; A relational marketing approach. *Allied Acadamies International Conference* (pp. 10(2), 49-54). Acadamies of Marketing Studies.
- Ndubisi, N. O. (2006). A stractural equation modelling of the antecedents of relationship quality in the Malaysia banking sector. *Journal of Financial Services Marketing*, 11(2), 131-141.
- Ngo Vu Minh, N. H. (2016). The Relationship between Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Customer Loyalty An Investigation in Vietnamese Retail Banking Sector. *Journal of Competitiveness*, Vol. 8, Issue 2, pp. 103 - 116.
- Nunnally, J. (1978). Psychometric Theory, 2nd ed. New YOrk: McGraw-Hill Book Company.
- Nyer, P. (2000). An investigation into whether complaining can cause increased consumer investigation. *Journal of consumer marketing*, 17(1) 9-19.
- Oh, H. (1999). Service quality, customer satisfaction, and customer value : A holistic perspective, 18. *Journal of Hospitality Management*, , 18: 67-82.
- Oliver R, R. L. (1980). A cognative model of the antecedents and consquences of satisfaction decisions. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 17,460-69.
- Oliver, R. (1980). A cognitive model of the antecedents and consequences of satisfaction decesions. *Journal of Marketing Research*, No. XVII, November, pp. 460-69.
- Oliver, R. (1993). A conceptual model of service quality and service satisfaction: compatible. Greenwich, CT: JAI Press.
- Oliver, R. (1999). Whence consumer loyalty? Journal of marketing, 33.
- O'Malley, L. a. (1998). Relationship marketing in consumer markets Rhetoric or reality,. *European Journal of Marketing*, 34 (7), pp. 797-815.
- Ovenden, A. (1995). Keep your customers happy and your competition will slowly fade away. *The TQM magazine Vol. 7 No.1*, 46-9.
- Pandit, R. D. (2016). A Study of Impact of Service Quality on Customer Satisfaction, Loyalty, Commitment & Retention. 98-120.
- Parasuraman, A. B. (1988). SERQUAL: A malitiple-item scale formeasuring consumerperception of service quality. *Journals of Retailing*, Vol. 64 No 1, pp. 12-40.
- Parasuraman, A. Z. (1985). A conceptual model of service quality and its. *Journal of Marketing*, 49(4), 41-50.
- Parasuraman, A. Z. (1991). Understanding customer expectation of service. *Sloan Management Review*, 32(3) 39-48.

- Parasuraman, A., Zeithaml., V. A., & Berry, L. L. (1994). Alternative Scales For Measuring Service Quality: A Comparative Assessment Based on Psychometric And Diagnostic Criteria, *Journal of Retailing*, , 70 (Fal) 3, 201-230.
- Patterson, P. &. (1997). Modeling the relationship between perceived value, satisfaction and repurchase intentions in a business-to-business, services context: An Empirical examination. *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, 8(5), 414-434.
- Portela.M.C.A.S & Thanassoulis, E. (2005). profitability of a sample of portuguese bank branches and its decomposition in to technical and allocative components. *EuropeanJournal of operational Researcch*, 162(3) 850-866.
- Ravald, A. &. (1996). The value concept and relationship marketing. *European Journal of marketing*, 30(2), 19-30.
- Reichheld, F. (1993). Loyalty-based management. *Harvard Business Review*, Vol. 71 No. 2, pp 64-73.
- Reichhold, F. F. (1994). Loyalty and renaissance of marketing. *Journa of Marketing Management*, 2(4), 10-12.
- Rust, R. T. (1994). Service quality: insights and managerial implications from the Frontier. In: Rust, R.T. and Oliver, R.L., Eds., Service Quality: New Directions in Theory and Practice,. California:: Sage Publications,.
- Salkind, D. C. (2002). *Handbook of Research Design & Social Measurement*. USA: http://dx.doi.org/10.4135/9781412984386.
- Santouridis, L. a. (2010). Investigating the impact of service quality and customer satisfaction on customer loyalty in mobile telephony in Greece. *TQM Journal*, 22(3), 330-343.
- Sargeant, A. W. (2001). Customer retention building customer loyalty Direct & Interactive Marketing. *International Journal of Marketing*, 177-214.
- Sekaran, U. (2000). *Research Methods for Business: A sikill building approach*. New York: John Wiley and Sins,Inc.
- Shanka, M. S. (2012). Bank Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Loyalty in Ethiopian Banking Sector. *http://www.researchgate.net/publication/256196617*, 1(1), 1–9.
- Shanka, M. S. (2012). Bank Service Quality, Customer Satisfaction and Loyalty in Ethiopian Banking Sector . Journal of Business Administration and Management Sciences Research, Vol. 1(1), pp. 001-009.

- Shoemaker, S. a. (1999). Customer loyalty: The future of hospitality marketing. *Journal of Hospitality Management*, 18, 349.
- Srivastava, S. G. (2009). Impact of Service Quality on Customer Loyalty, Commitment and Trust in the Indian Banking Sector. *Journal of Marketing Management*, Vol. VIII, Nos. 3 & 4, pp. 74-95,.
- Stafford, M. R. (1996). Demographic discriminators of service qualityin banking industry. *Journal of marketing*, Vol.10,Issue 4.
- Suki, N. M. (2013). Service Quality vs . Customer Satisfaction. *Perspectives of Visitors to a Public University Library*, , 7(2), 338–342.
- Swar, B. N. (2012). Public, Private, and Foreign banks. *Journals of Indian Management*, 9(3), 43-51.
- Systems, A. Q. (1992). *Quality Function Deployment Practitioner Workshop*. USA.: American Supplier Institute Inc.
- Tariq, A. N. (2009). The main antecedents of customer loyalty in Maroccan banking industry. *International Journal of Business and Management Science*, 2(2), 101-115.
- Terefe, S. (2013). *Prospect and Challenges of Private Commercial Banks in Ethiopia*. Addis Ababa: : Unity University.
- Tsegaye, A. (2016). Service Quality, Customer satisfaction and Customer loyality. *Journal of science*, 15-16.
- Tsoukatos, E. a. (2006). "Path analysis of perceived service quality, satisfaction and loyalty in Greek insurance. *Managing Service Quality*, Vol.16, No.5, pp.501-519.
- Veloutsou, C. D. (2004). Are the determinants of bank loyalty brand specific? *Journal of Financial Services Marketing*, 9(2), 113-125.
- Webster, C. (1989). Can consumers be segmented on the basis of their service quality expectations? *Journals of services marketing*, 3(2),35-53.
- Wieseke, J. G. (2012). On the role of empathyin customer employee interactions. *Journals of Service Research*, 15(3), 316-331.
- Wong, A. &. (2003). Service quality and Customer loyalty perspectives on two levels of retail relationships. *Journals of service marketing*, 17(5) 495-513.
- Woodside, A. F. (1989). Link service quality, customer satisfaction and behavioural intention. *Journal of Health care marketing*, vol.9 No.4, pp.5-17.

- Yamane, T. (1967). *Statistics, An Introductory Analysis, 2nd edition*. New York:: Harperand Row.York, McGraw-Hill.
- Yee, R. W. (2011). The service-profit chain: An empirical analysis in high-contact service industries. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 130(2), 236-245.
- Zafar, M. Z. (2012). Service quality, customer satisfaction and loyalty: An empirical analysis of banking sector in Pakistan. *Information Management and Business Review*, , 4(3), 159-167.
- Zahir Osman, I. S. (2014). Influence of Customer Satisfaction on Service Quality and Customer Loyalty Relationship in Malaysian Commercial Banking Industry. *International Journal of Economics, Finance and Management*, VOL. 3, NO. 2,.
- Zeithaml, V. A. (1996). The behavoural consequences of service quality. *Journal of Marketing*, 31-46.
- Zerhun, S. T. (2013). competition in Ethiopia banking sector. *Africa journal of Economics*, 176-190.
- Zikmund., W. G. (2003). Business Research Methods . Indiana : Thomson/South-Western,.

Zineldin, M. (2000). TRM Total Relationship Management,. Lund: Student litterateur.

Zineldin, M. (2005). Quality and Customer relatioship management(CRM) as competitive strategy in the Swedish banking industry. *The TQM magazine*, 17(4), 329-344.

Questionnaire

ST. MARRY UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF POST GRAGUATE STUDIES DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT MASTERS OF BUSINESS ADMINSTRATION (MBA) PROGRAM

Dear

I am Maramawit Solomon, a graduate student at St. Marry University School of post graduate. I am conducting research on studying **THE MEDIATING EFFECT OF CUSTOMER SATISFACTION ON THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN SERVICE QUALITY AND CUSTOMER LOYALTY IN SELECTED BRANCHES OF COMMERCIAL BANK OF ETHIOPIA** in partial fulfillment of Master of Arts in Business Administration. I kindly request you to spend some minutes of your time in filling the questionnaire. Your response and participation form a critical part of the success of my research. I would be very grateful if you could take some time to fill the questionnaire. I would like to assure you that your response will be kept strictly confidential and will only be used for the purposes of this academic research.

DIRECTION:

There are scales (1: Strongly Disagree, 2: Disagree, 3: Neutral, 4: Agree, 5: Strongly agree). The higher the number means the more I agree with the statement. The lower the number means the more you disagree with the statement. If you feel your agreement is between these two extremes, please pick any answer from within the scale.

Part 1 Personal Information of Respondents

1. Sex:

Male () Female ()

2. Age

1. 20-30 () 2. 31-45 () 3. 45-50 () 4. Above 50 ()

- 3. Education level
- 1. High school () 2. Diploma () 3. Degree () 4 above degree ()

3. Reason for using the service from Tefera Degfe Branch

1. Proximity () 2. Service quality () 3. Trustworthiness () 4. Good Relationship ()

Part Two: studying Variables

Service Ouality	1	2	3	4	5
Tangible					-
					<u> </u>
					<u> </u>
					<u> </u>
The bank insists on error free records					
Responsiveness					
Employees in the bank tell you exactly when the services will be performed					
Employees in the bank give your prompt service.					
Employees in the bank are always willing to help you					
Employees in the bank are never too busy to respond to your request					
Customer satisfaction	1	2	3	4	5
I think I did a right thing that I selected my hank					+
					+
					+
					+
	1				+
					+
Bank offers me compensation in case of service failure					+
Dank orrers me compensation in case of service failure	1		<u> </u>		+
Bank apologizes if they fail to serve me on time					
	Responsiveness Employees in the bank tell you exactly when the services will be performed Employees in the bank are always willing to help you Employees in the bank are never too busy to respond to your request Assurance The behavior of employees in the bank instills confidence in you You feel safe in your transactions with the bank Employees in the bank are consistently courteous with you Employees in the bank have the knowledge to answer your questions Empathy The bank gives you individual attention The bank and operating hours convenient to all its customers The bank as operating hours convenient to all its customers The bank has your best interests at heart Customer satisfaction I think I did a right thing that I selected my bank Bank always exceed in my expectation while offering me the services Bank's service exactly meets my requirement I feel good that branch manager knows me personally I feel happy after every visit of the bank Bank is having strong mechanism in case of service failure	Tangible Image: Content of the service is the service of the serv	Service Quality Image: Contemport of the service o	Service QualityImage: Constraint of the service of the bank has modern looking equipmentImage: Constraint of the bank has modern looking equipmentThe bank's physical features are visually appealingImage: Constraint of the bank's reception desk employees are neat appearingImage: Constraint of the bank's reception desk employees are neat appearingMaterials associated with the service (such as pamphlets) are visually appealing at the bankImage: Constraint of the bank service (such as pamphlets) are visually appealing at the bankImage: Constraint of the bank service (such as pamphlets) are visually appealing at the bankWhen the bank promises to do something by a certain time, it does soImage: Constraint of the bank service right the first time.Image: Constraint of the bank provides its service at the time it promises to do soThe bank performs the service right the first time.Image: Constraint of the bank insists on error free recordsImage: Constraint of the bank insists on error free recordsResponsivenessImage: Constraint of the bank are always willing to help youImage: Constraint of the bank are always willing to help youEmployees in the bank are always willing to help youImage: Constraint of the bank are consistently courteous with youYou feel safe in your transactions with the bankImage: Constraint of the bank have the knowledge to answer your questionsEmployees in the bank have the knowledge to answer your questionsImage: Constraint of the bank has operating hours convenient to all its customersThe bank apy our best interests at heartImage: Constraint of the bank has your best interests at heartThe bank apy our best interests at heartImage: Constraint of the bank and a	Service QualityImage: Constraint of the service of the s

10	Bank is having many no. of the branches					
11	Location of bank is very convenient to commute					
III	Customer loyalty	1	2	3	4	5
1	I always recommend my bank to others					
2	I get best value for money from my bank					
3	I am never interested in the various service offerings of the competitors					
4	I would not prefer to switch to the other bank					
5	I am having personal emotions attached with the bank					
6	Overall I am very happy with my bank					
7	I consider myself loyal to the bank					

If you have comments or suggestion regarding to this study or the questions asked in this survey,

please use the space provided below to express your own comments and opinions.

If you would like to receive the findings of this study please write your email address below:

.....